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PREFACE

Accounting Trends & Techniques—1995, Forty-ninth Edition, is a compilation of data obtained by a
survey of 600 annual reports to stockholders undertaken for the purpose of analyzing the accounting
information disclosed in such reports. The annual reports surveyed were those of selected industrial,
merchandising, and service companies for fiscal periods ending between February 25, 1994 and February
2, 1995.

Significant accounting trends, as revealed by a comparison of current survey findings with those of
prior years, are highlighted in numerous comparative tabulations throughout this publication. These tables
show trends in such diverse accounting matters as financial statement format and terminology and the
accounting treatment of transactions and events reflected in the financial statements.

Accounting techniques are illustrated by excerpts from the annual reports of the survey companies
and the annual reports of companies not included in the survey which presented items of particular
interest or of an unusual nature. References (in the form of a listing of company identification
numbers—see the following paragraph) to additional illustrations of an accounting technique may be
requested from the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants either by writing or by calling
Richard Rikert, Harborside Financial Center, 201 Plaza Three, Jersey City, NJ 07311-3881; telephone
(201) 938-3067.

Each of the 600 survey companies included in this edition has been assigned an identification
number which is used for reference throughout the text in the discussion of pertinent information. 360 of
the companies were listed in the fortieth (1986) edition and each retained the number assigned in that
edition. The other 240 companies in the 1986 edition have been eliminated. Most of the eliminated
companies were eliminated because of a business combination with another company. The identification
numbers of the eliminated companies have not been reused. Numbers 601 through 840 have been
assigned to the replacement companies. The 600 companies in the current edition are listed in the
Appendix of 600 Companies both alphabetically and by their identification number.

The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants has established the National Automated
Accounting Research System (NAARS) as an additional means of information retrieval. NAARS includes
a computerized data bank consisting of the full text of several thousand company annual reports to
stockholders supplemented by a literature file of authoritative pronouncements. Information may be
retrieved through individual computer terminal subscription or by requesting Institute personnel to perform
searches on an AICPA terminal. For further information concerning NAARS, contact Hal Clark, (201)
938-3248.

Special acknowledgment is due to Matthew Calderisi, CPA; J. Richard Chaplin, CPA; Gregory Frydman,
CPA; William A Godla, CPA; Toni Monier, CPA; Joseph M. Nestor, CPA; and Anthony Tarallo, CPA for their
assistance in the analysis of the financial reports and preparation of the manuscript.

Susan L. Menelaides, CPA—Director, Technical Information Division
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Trends (201) 938-3067 AICPA Technical Hotline (800) 862-4272
NAARS (201) 938-3248 Order Department (800) 862-4272
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TABLE 1-1: INDUSTRY CLASSIFICATIONS

1994
Advertising . ........................... 2
ABrospace. ...........oiiiiiiienia.. 20
Apparel,shoes ......................... 17
Beverages................... ... .. ..... 6
Building materials, glass. ................. 14
Chemicals.................... ...t 34
Computer and data services............... 5
Computers, office equipment .. ............ 24
Electronics, electrical equipment ........... 55
Engineering, construction. ................ 6
Entertainment.......................... 5
Food...........ccooiii 39
Forest and paper products . ............... 30
Furniture......... ... ... ... ... ... ... 7
Hotels,casinos. ........................ 3
Industrial and farm equipment . . . .......... 44
Metal products .. ....................... 23
Metals................................ 24
Mining, crude oil production .............. 13
Motor vehiclesand parts ................. 25
Petroleum refining ...................... 23
Pharmaceuticals . ....................... 13
Publishing, printing ..................... 20
Retailing—grocery stores. . ................ 10
Retailing—otherstores ................... 17
Rubber and plastic products. .............. 11
Scientific, photographic,
and control equipment .. ............... 34
Soaps, cosmetics . ............. . 8
Textiles............oo i 13
Tobacco ............... ... ........... 6
Transportation equipment ................ 4
Waste management ..................... 3
Wholesalers ........................... 16
Not otherwise classified . ................. 26

Total Companies . . ................ 600

1993

22
16

13
35

23
57

40
29

43
23
25
13
25
23
15
20
10
17
1

34
9
1

16
26

Section 1: General

THIS SECTION OF THE SURVEY is concerned with
general information about the 600 companies selected
for the survey and with certain accounting information
usually disclosed in notes accompanying the basic finan-
cial statements.

COMPANIES SELECTED FOR SURVEY

All 600 companies included in the survey are registered
with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Many of
the survey companies have securities traded on one of
the major stock exchanges—78% on the New York and
6% on the American. Table 1-1 presents an industry
classification of the 600 survey companies; Table 1-2 in-
dicates the relative size of the survey companies as
measured by dollar amount of revenue.

TABLE 1-2: REVENUE OF SURVEY COMPANIES
1994 1993 1992 1991

Less than $100,000,000 ......... 38 42 44 51
Between $100,000,000 and

$500,000,000................ 101 100 106 103
Between $500,000,000 and

$1,000,000,000 .............. 77 77 80 83
Between $1,000,000,000 and

$2,000,000,000 .............. 116 130 120 123
More than $2,000,000,000 ....... 268 251 250 240

Total Companies ........... 600 600 600 600




2 Section 1: General

INFORMATION REQUIRED BY RULE 14a-3
TO BE INCLUDED IN ANNUAL REPORTS
TO STOCKHOLDERS

Rule 14a-3 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
states that annual reports furnished to stockholders in
connection with the annual meetings of stockholders
should include audited financial statements—balance
sheets as of the 2 most recent fiscal years, and state-
ments of income and of cash flows for each of the 3 most
recent fiscal years. Rule 14a-3 also states that the fol-
lowing information, as specified in Regulation S-K,
should be included in the annual report to stockholders:

1. Selected quarterly financial data.

2. Disagreements with accountants on accounting
and financial disclosure.

3. Summary of selected financial data for last 5
years.

4. Description of business activities.
5. Segment information.

6. Listing of company directors and executive
officers.

7. Market price of Company’s common stock for
each quarterly period within the two most recent
fiscal years.

8. Management’s discussion and analysis of finan-
cial condition and results of operations.

Examples of items 1, 3, and 8 follow. The item 8 exam-
ples include examples of the complete discussion and
analysis and excerpts of prospective information. Exam-
ples of segment information disclosures are presented
on pages 17-28.

Quarterly Financial Data

AT&T CORP. (DEC)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. Quarterly Information (Unaudited)

Quarter

Dollars in millions (except per share amounts) First Second Third Fourth
1994
Total TEVBNUEBS . . . oottt et e $17,097 $18,238 $18,649 $21,110
GrOSS MANGIN. ..ottt e e 6,967 7,406 7,765 8,639
Netincome........ e e 1,074 1,248 1,050 1,338
Per common share:

NEtiNCOME . ..o e .69 .80 .67 .85

Dividendsdeclared. ............cco it 33 33 33 .33
Stock price*:

HIGh o s 571/8 571/8 557/8 551/4

LOW .« ittt 50 5/8 491/2 521/2 47 1/4

Quarter-end CloSe. . .. ... e 511/4 53 3/8 54 501/4




Information Required by SEC Regulations 3

1993

Total revenues ...................... S
GrOSS MArgiN . ..ottt e et et i e
Income before cumulative effects of accounting changes. ...........
Netincome (10SS). .. ....coiiiii i e

Per common share:

Income before cumulative effects of accounting changes..........
Netincome (I0SS) . ...t
Dividendsdeclared ...t

Stock price*:

........... $16,199 $16,857 $17,225 $19,070
........... 6,491 6,785 6,941 7,499
........... 922 982 1,022 776
........... (8,686) 982 1,022 776
........... .60 64 .66 .50
........... (5.65) .64 .66 50
........... 33 .33 .33 .33
........... 591/8 637/8 65 613/8
........... 501/8 53 3/4 57 3/8 52

........... 56 3/4 63 587/8 521/2

* Stock prices obtained from the Composite Tape.

The number of weighted average shares outstanding
increases as we issue new common shares for em-
ployee plans, shareowner plans and other purposes. For
this reason, the sum of quarterly earnings per common
share may not be the same as earnings per common
share for the year, and the per share effects of unusual
items in a quarter may differ from the per share effects of
those same items for the year.

In the third quarter of 1994, we recorded $227 million
of costs ($169 million net of taxes) related to the McCaw
merger primarily consisting of legal and investment bank-
ing fees and bonus pool funding.

THE BLACK & DECKER CORPORATION (DEC)

In the second quarter of 1993, we recorded $278 mil-
lion in provisions for business restructuring activities. The
effect of these provisions was offset by the $217 million
gain from selling UNIX System Laboratories, Inc. and
other miscellaneous credits. In the fourth quarter of
1993, we recorded a $190 million provision for business
restructuring at AT&T Gilobal Information Solutions Com-
pany, which reduced net income by $119 million ($0.08
per share).

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 20: Quarterly Results (Unaudited)

(Millions of Dollars Except Per Share Data) Quarter
Year ended December 31, 1994 First Second Third Fourth
TOtal FBVBIUBS . .. ettt ettt e e e $1,084.6 $1,221.2 $1,3234 $1.619.1
GrOSS MIANGIN . oottt ittt e e e e 370.7 421.3 4472 561.5
Net BarNiNgS . . . . et e e 14.6 23.0 29.3 60.5
Net earnings percommonshare ............. ... oottt 14 24 .31 .68
Year Ended December 31, 1993
TOtal FBVBNUES . .. ottt e e e $1,099.9 $1,155.9 $1,189.6 $1,436.8
GrOSS MANGIN . .ttt et e e 379.9 397.6 385.0 487.2
Earnings before cumulative effect of

change in accounting principle. . . .......... . ... 13.9 19.5 19.5 42.3
Net Earnings (10SS). . ... ..ot e (15.3) 19.5 19.5 423
Per common share information:

Earnings before cumulative effect of

change in accounting principle . ......... ... ... 13 .20 .20 A7

Netearnings (10SS) . .........oviiii i

(:22) 20 20 47
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The results for the first quarter of 1993 included a
charge for the cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No.
112, “Employers’ Accounting for Postemployment Bene-
fits,” effective as of January 1, 1993, in the amount of
$29.2 million or $.35 per common share. The fourth
quarter of 1993 included the gain on sale of Dynapert
and Corbin Russwin, substantially offset by the charge
for plant closures and reorganizations.

The three-month period ended July 4, 1993, included
a tax benefit of $1.4 million reflective of the cumulative

NATIONAL SEMICONDUCTOR CORPORATION (MAY)

year-to-date adjustment of the effective tax rate that re-
sulted from a change in the mix between foreign and do-
mestic earnings, primarily due to increased operating in-
come and lower interest expense in the United States.

Earnings per common share calculations for each of
the quarters were based on the weighted average num-
ber of shares outstanding for each period, and the sum
of the quarters may not necessarily be equal to the full
year earnings per common share amount.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 14. Financial Information by Quarter (Unaudited)

The following table presents the quarterly information for fiscal 1994 and 1993:

Quarter

(In millions, except per share amounts) First Second Third Fourth
1994
NEt SaIBS . ..ottt $558.9 $582.4 $544.7 $609.4
BrOSS MAIGIN . . .o\ttt ettt e et e et e e $228.3 $2435 $228.4 $258.9
NEE NCOMIE. . . ettt et e e e e e $ 57.1 $ 60.7 $ 63.8 $ 824
Primary earnings per common share before cumulative

effect of accountingchange............ ... $0.39 $ 0.46 $ 048 $ 0.63
Cumulative effect of accountingchange ................. .. . il 0.04 — — —
Primary earnings per commonshare ...............o.tiiiireeanneeaennn... $ 043 $ 0.46 $ 0.48 $ 0.63
Weighted average common and

common equivalent shares outstanding . ................... ... 1195 1201 120.8 126.0
Fully diluted earnings per share before cumulative effect

0faCCOUNtING CRANGE. . ... ottt e e e et $ 0.37 $ 0.43 $ 0.45 $ 0.58
Cumulative effect of accountingchange .. ................... . il 0.04 — — —
Fully diluted earnings per COMMON Share. .. ...........o.vvneenneenneenennn. $ 041 $ 0.43 $ 045 $ 0.58
Weighted average fully diluted shares. . ........... ... ... . ... i 140.4 140.6 1417 143.0
Common stock price —high ... ... e $19.50 $21.75 $21.88 $25.00
Common StOCK PrICE — JOW . . ..o e $14.38 $15.00 $14.38 $16.75
1993
Nt SalBS . ..ot e $472.4 $491.9 $491.5 $557.9
GrOSS MATGIN . . . ottt ittt e et e e 164.7 167.2 173.8 209.7
NELINCOME. . ..ot i e 219 353 26.9 46.2
Primary earnings per COMmON Share .. ..........ovvrtvueanne e innnn . $ 017 $ 0.27 $ 019 $0.35
Weighted average common and

common equivalent shares outstanding . ................... ... ool 114.8 116.0 115.6 117.6
Fully diluted earnings pershare ...............ccoiiiiinriniininnann... $ 017 $ 027 $ 019 $ 0.33
Weighted average fully diluted shares. . ........... ... ... 114.8 116.0 115.6 138.6
Common stock price —high . .......... $11.75 $14.13 $13.63 $15.00
ComMON StOCK PriCE — JOW . ... e 8.50 9.88 10.13 10.63




Information Required by SEC Regulations

Fiscal 1994 results of operations include patent licens-
ing income of $15.9 million, of which $1.4 million, $0.7
million, $5.3 million, and $8.5 million were included in the
first, second, third and fourth quarters, respectively. Fis-
cal 1994 results of operations also include centralization
costs for the sales distribution facilities of $10.1 million,
primarily recorded in the first and second quarters. In ad-
dition, included in the second quarter was a $2.2 million
gain on the sale of a minority investment, and included in
the fourth quarter was a $2.6 million favorable restructur-
ing adjustment (see Note 2).

Fiscal 1993 results of operations include patent licens-
ing income of $43.7 million, of which $31.7 million, $8.3
million, and $3.7 million were included in the second,
third and fourth quarters, respectively. Fiscal 1993 re-
sults of operations also include centralization costs for
the sales distribution facilities of $10.1 million, primarily

OAK INDUSTRIES INC. (DEC)

recorded in the second quarter. Fiscal 1993 results of
operations include $11.9 million of legal fees incurred on
the tax case (see Note 6), of which $1.5 million, $4.5 mil-
lion, $3.2 million, and $2.7 million were incurred in the
first, second, third and fourth quarters, respectively. Also
included in the third quarter of fiscal 1993 was a $4.7
million write down of a minority investment.

Preferred dividends are reflected as adjustments to re-
ported earnings in the calculation of primary earnings per
share. :

The Company’s common stock is traded on the New
York Stock Exchange and the Pacific Stock Exchange.
The quoted market prices are as reported on the New
York Stock Exchange Composite Tape. At May 29, 1994,
there were approximately 13,073 holders of the Com-
pany’s common stock.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of the unaudited quarterly results of operations for 1994 and 1993 (dollars in thousands, ex-

cept per share data):

Quarter Ended
March June  September December
1994 31 30 30 3 Full Year
Netsales..........ccvviiiiii e $61,785 $65,681 $58,400 $63,138 $249,004
GroSS Margin . .. ...ttt 22,565 25,009 21,803 23,989 93,366
Income from continuing operations ........................ 7,392 10,286 7,366 17,402 42,446
Netincome. ....... ..o i 7,392 10,286 7,366 17,402 42,446
Earnings per common share:
Primary and fully-diluted:
Continuing operations .. . . ...............coiiiiaaL. .40 .56 .40 .94 2.31
Netincome......... ... ... 40 .56 .40 .94 2.31
March June  September December
1993 31 30 30 3 Full Year
Netsales..........ccoiiiiiiii e $59,223 $58,223 $51,578 $50,538 $219,562
GrOSS MaArgin .. ..ot et 19,131 19,792 18,395 17,538 74,856
Income from continuing operations ........................ 5,015 5,565 6,450 9,630 26,660
Netincome. ....... ... i, 5,015 5,565 6,450 9,630 26,660
Earnings per common share:
Primary:
Continuingoperations.. . .............................. .28 31 35 .53 1.47
Netincome. ..., .28 .31 .35 .53 1.47
Fully-diluted:
Continuingoperations.. . .............................. .28 30 35 .53 1.47
Netincome............ ... R .28 .30 35 53 1.47
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Continuing Operations

Fourth Quarter — 1994

The Company recognized an income tax benefit of
$14,000,000 resulting from an adjustment to its deferred
income tax valuation allowance in accordance with FAS
109. This benefit caused minority interest in net income
of subsidiaries to increase $3,200,000.

The Comapny recognized a restructuring charge of
$2,000,000 relating primarily to vacated facilities.

Second Quarter — 1994

The Company recorded a gain of $900,000 resulting from
a state income tax law change.

Selected Information For Five Years

Fourth Quarter — 1993

The Company recognized an income tax benefit of
$6,000,000 resulting from an adjustment to its deferred
income tax valuation allowance in accordance with FAS
109. This benefit caused minority interest in net income
of subsidiaries to increase $1,600,000.

Third Quarter — 1993

The Company recognized a gain of $3,878,000 resulting
from an Internal Revenue Service refund relating to the
settlement of a tax dispute.

The company recognized a restructuring charge of
$2,900,000 to cover the costs associated with reorganiz-
ing its Mexican manufacturing operations, consolidating
certain U.S. operations, and certain other overhead
reductions.

THE GREAT ATLANTIC & PACIFIC TEA COMPANY, INC. (FEB)

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY OF SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

(Dollars in thousands, Fiscal 1993 Fiscal 1992  Fiscal 1991  Fiscal 1990 Fiscal 1989
except per share figures) (52 weeks) (52 weeks) (52 weeks) (52 weeks) (52 weeks)
Operating Results :
SaleS. ... e $10,384,077 $10,499,465 $11,590,991 $11,390,943  $11,147,997
Income (loss) before cumulativeeffect ..................... 3,959 (98,501) 70,664 150,954 146,698
Cumulative effect on prior years of
changes in accounting principles:
Incometaxes. ... —_ (64,500) — —_ —
Postretirement benefits ................ ... ... — (26,500) — —_ —
Netincome (10SS) . ... oot 3,959 (189,501) 70,664 150,954 146,698
Per Share Data
Income (loss) before cumulativeeffect ..................... 10 (2.58) 1.85 3.95 3.84
Cumulative effect on prior years of
changes in accounting principles:
INCOME taXeS. . ... ottt e — (1.69) — — —
Postretirement benefits ................ ... ... ... — (.69) —_ — —
Netincome (10SS) . .......covei 10 (4.96) 1.85 3.95 3.84
Cashdividends. . ............o i, .80 .80 .80 775 .675
Financial Position
Current assets . ... e 1,230,339 1,221,492 1,255,908 1,319,894 1,211,592
Current liabilities . ........... ...t 1,151,132 1,164,723 1,082,042 1,203,643 1,131,411
Workingcapital ....... ... 79,207 56,769 173,866 116,251 80,181
Currentratio. . ... ..o e 1.07 1.05 1.16 1.10 1.07
Total @SSetS . ... e 3,098,695 3,090,930 3,293,267 3,415,045 2,967,297
Long-termdebt ... ... ... ... 544,399 414,301 486,129 532,510 329,286
Capital lease obligations ................................. 162,866 182,066 206,003 220,892 233,564
Equity
Shareholders' equity ............c.coiiiii 994,417 1,034,330 1,253,106 1,221,270 1,092,164
Bookvaluepershare............. ... 26.02 27.06 32.79 31.96 28.59
Weighted average shares outstanding. .. .................... 38,220,000 38,219,000 38,211,000 38,206,000 38,198,000
Number of registered shareholders. ........................ 11,831 12,309 12,871 14,210 15,045
Other
Number of employees . ..., 94,000 90,000 94,600 99,300 91,000
Number of storesatyearend .................... ... ... 1,173 1,193 1,238 1,275 1,215
Total store area (squarefeet) ............................. 37,908,000 37,741,000 38,742,000 39,353,000 36,369,000
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THE PERKIN-ELMER CORPORATION
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

(Dollar amounts in thousands except per share amounts) June 30, June 30, July 31, July 31, July 31,
For the years ended 1994 (3) 1993 (b) 1992 (¢) 1991 () 1990
Financial Operations
NEt reVENUES ...\ttt e e $1,024,467  $1,011,297 $970,054 $893,499 $849,005
Operating costs and expenses. ............covvvvveviinnnn. 928,451 967,836 907,490 892,174 796,625
Operatingincome. ............oottiiiie i 96,016 43,461 62,564 1,325 52,380
Income (loss) before incometaxes......................... 89,132 43,929 49,283 (10,389) 41,713
Income (loss) from continuing operations................... 73,978 24,444 24,296 (16,384) 27,697
Cumulative effect on prior years:of changes

in accounting principles (net of income taxes).............. (83,098)
Netincome (I0SS) ......covviriiii e 51,127 (56,940) 35,237 (18,404) 48,610
Income (loss) per share from continuing operations. . ......... 1.66 .54 .54 (:39) .56
Loss per share from cumulative effect on prior

years of changes in accounting principles ................. (1.85)
Net income (loss)pershare ................. ...t 1.14 (1.27) 79 (.44) .98
Financial Position
Workingcapital ..............c i $136,400 $100,929 $140,456 $116,802 $162,514
Property, plant and equipment,atcost ...................... 329,076 352,767 362,840 351,607 324,562
Total @SSets . ...t e 884,500 851,070 948,953 898,248 923,067
Long-termdebt ......... ... ... .. 34,270 7,069 67,011 65,881 65,356
Shareholders’ equity ............... .o, 290,432 306,605 429,007 411,034 448,919
Other Data
OrderS. . .ot $1,048,350 $995,379 $983,568 $914,409 $855,079
Dividendspershare.................cooiiiii i, .68 .68 .68 .68 .68
Average common shares including

equivalents where dilutive (in thousands) .................. 44,673 44,953 44,695 42,091 49,835
Shareholders ........... ... e 9,115 9,728 10,483 11,487 13,079
EMpIOYees .. ..o 5,954 6,563 6,632 6,797 6,996

(a) Includes a $22.9 million after-tax charge for discontinued operations (see Note 2).

(b) Includes $41.0 million in one-time charges in connection with the merger with ABI and an $83.1 million charge representing the cumulative
effect of adopting SFAS 106, “Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions,” SFAS 112, “Employers’ Account-
ing for Postemployment Benefits” and SFAS 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Prior years were not restated for SFAS 106, 112 or 109
(see Notes 2, 4 and 5).

(c) Includes $22.0 million in charges related to product line discontinuance and facility relocation, as well as a $3.3 million gain on the sale of a
joint venture (see Notes 2 and 10).

(d) Includes a $50.2 million charge related to the consolidation of manufacturing, engineering and marketing functions worldwide.
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SPS TECHNOLOGIES, INC. (DEC)
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

(Thousands of dollars except per share data) 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990
Netsales ... ..o e $348,905 $319,094 $359,431 $408,499 $440,996
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations ................. 3,200 (30,995) (7,009) 5,612 (9,961)
Discontinued operations —

Estimated gain (loss) ondisposal........................ 990 (1,500)
Cumulative effect of changes in

accounting policies ............. ... L (13,400)
Netearnings (10SS) . ..ot 3,200 (30,995) (20,409) 6,602 (11,461)
Totalassets ... 289,246 285,979 295,608 318,323 368,896
Long-termdebt . ... ... ... ... 56,426 81,828 63,321 61,110 91,325
Property, plant and equipment additions .................... 17,615 12,248 11,555 11,118 19,440
Per Share Data:

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations................ .62 (6.07) (1.37) 1.10 (1.98)

Discontinued operation —

Estimated gain (loss) ondisposal ...................... .20 (.30)
Cumulative effect of changes in
accounting policies. .............. . (2.63)

Netearnings (10SS) ... .62 (6.07) (4.00) 1.30 (2.28)

Cashdividends...............c i .96 1.28 1.28 1.28

Shareholders’equity. . ............ ... .. i 2418 20.14 27.98 35.34 35.78

Results for 1994, 1993 and 1992 include a net restruc-
turing charge of $3,500, $32,400 and $6,800, respec-
tively. See Note 3 to consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Discussion And Analysis of
Financial Condition And Results of Operations

AEL INDUSTRIES, INC. (FEB)

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL
CONDITION

The following discussion and analysis provide informa-
tion which management believes is relevant to an as-
sessment and understanding of the Company’s consoli-
dated results of operations and financial condition. The
discussion should be read in conjunction with the con-
solidated financial statements and notes thereto.

Results of Operations — Fiscal 1994 versus Fiscal 1993

Sales and service revenues of $123,632,000 reflect an
increase of 9% from the $113,132,000 in revenues re-
ported for fiscal year 1993. The revenue increase was
primarily attributable to the avionics installation/integra-
tion programs which generated revenues of $41,307,000
in fiscal year 1994 compared with revenues of
$32,732,000 in fiscal year 1993. The Company’'s
ANVIS/HUD avionics program individually produced
revenues of $10,285,000 in 1994 versus $4,262,000 in
1993. In addition to the avionics programs, revenues

The Company changed its accounting policies, effec-
tive January 1, 1992, to accrue for postretirement bene-
fits other than pensions and account for deferred income
taxes under the asset and liability method. See Note 2 to
consolidated financial statements.

from radar warning receiver programs increased
$3,357,000 in the current year, primarily due to the
AN/APR-39A program revenues of $10,352,000 which
were approximately double the revenues reported in fis-
cal year 1993. Partially offsetting the revenue growths in
the avionics and receiver programs was a decline in
revenues from the electronic countermeasures program
group in fiscal year 1994. Within the countermeasures
group, the TACJAM-A program contributed revenues of
$6,615,000 in fiscal year 1994, down from $12,996,000
in fiscal year 1993. However, the Band 9/10 program,
another major electronic countermeasures program, in-
creased its contribution to revenues by $2,656,000 in
1994, and revenues from a major electronic countermea-
sures program with a foreign government also increased
by $2,012,000 in the current year.

Operating income for fiscal year 1994 was $3,742,000
as compared with $2,143,000 for fiscal year 1993. The
increase in operating income was primarily due to the



Information Required by SEC Regulations

current year's growth in sales and service revenues, a
reduction in administrative and selling expenses, and
significantly less costs in fiscal year 1994 associated
with restructuring, corporate downsizing, and consolida-
tion of resources. The administrative and selling ex-
penses reduction reflects the Company’s continuing
efforts to contain costs in those areas, as well as a one-
time curtaiiment gain of $381,000 related to a supple-
mental retirement benefit plan for a former executive
officer. Partially offsetting these favorable items, operat-
ing income in fiscal year 1994 was adversely impacted
by an increase in bid and proposal spending, as well as
contract cost estimate and profitability adjustments,
which in the aggregate had an unfavorable effect of
$3,900,000 in fiscal year 1994 as compared with
$2,500,000 in fiscal year 1993. Revisions to the esti-
mated final costs on several engineering development
programs resulted in contract loss provisions in fiscal
year 1994 which were $3,100,000 above comparable
provisions for those programs in fiscal year 1993. Con-
versely, a profitability adjustment to the AN/MLQ-34
TACJAM program, resulting from a prolonged contract
modification negotiation, produced a favorable impact of
$1,800,000 on operating income in fiscal year 1994 with
no comparable adjustments in fiscal year 1993. Bid and
proposal costs increased $922,000 in fiscal year 1994
reflecting the Company’s increased bidding activity for a
major aircraft modification program and development
programs associated with long-term production con-
tracts. Finally, company-sponsored research and devel-
opment spending decreased $339,000 in fiscal year
1994 due to the Company’s re-allocation of available
technical resources, including personnel, to customer-
sponsored engineering development efforts, including
the development programs referenced above. Company-
sponsored research and development spending is ex-
pected to resume its upward trend in fiscal year 1995.

Interest expense in fiscal year 1994 decreased
$699,000 from fiscal year 1993 primarily due to lower
average debt levels. In April 1993, the Company repaid
$6,600,000 of its $20,000,000, 10.3% unsecured note
payable. Investment income for fiscal year 1994 de-
creased $388,000 from fiscal year 1993 primarily due to
the sale of marketable securities to meet the $6,600,000
debt repayment. Also, marketable securities were sold
to fund capital expenditures including a significant
building addition at the Company’s Richardson Road
facility which was completed in August 1993. Other in-
come for fiscal years 1994 and 1993 included $498,000
and $368,000, respectively, for royalties received under
a license agreement with a foreign vendor. Finally, in
fiscal year 1993 the Company established an allowance
of $2,200,000 relating to a settlement of civil claims
pertaining to the pricing of a 1985 fixed-price contract
modification.

The income tax provisions for fiscal years 1994 and
1993 were based on annual effective tax rates of 30%
and 42%, respectively. Operating results for the purpose
of calculating the annual effective tax rate in fiscal year
1993 exclude the provision for claims settlement of
$2,200,000. See Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements for the reconciliation of the statutory federal
income tax rate to the Company’s effective tax rates in
fiscal years 1994 and 1993.

As of the beginning of fiscal year 1993, the Company
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” and recorded
the cumulative effect of the accounting change of
$2,540,000, or $.64 per share, primarily resulting from
the recording of tax benefits related to contract loss pro-
visions recorded in prior years and adjusting tax rates on
previously recorded tax assets and liabilities. In addition,
the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS
No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement
Benefits Other Than Pensions,” and SFAS No. 112,
“Employers’ Accounting for Postemployment Benefits.”
The Company’s adoption of these two standards has not
impacted current operating results and is not expected to
have a material impact on future operating results.

Results of Operations — Fiscal 1993 versus Fiscal 1992

Sales and service revenues of $113,132,000 reflected a
decrease of 19% from the $140,112,000 in revenues re-
ported for fiscal year 1992. The revenue decline directly
reflected the low level of new contract awards received
during the last six months of fiscal year 1992. Revenues
from avionics installation/integration programs reflected
the most significant decline in fiscal year 1993, contribut-
ing $32,732,000 of revenues in that year as compared
with $47,982,000 in fiscal year 1992. In addition, reve-
nues attributable to simulator programs declined
$13,155,000 in fiscal year 1993 primarily due to the
maturation of individual jamming simulator programs
such as the AN/MLQ-T4 Ground Jammer, the AN/FSQ-
T22, the HPMAS ALT-40 and the Guided Weapons
Evaluation Facility. The decline was partially offset by in-
creased revenues from radar environment simulator pro-
grams with several foreign customers. Electronic coun-
termeasures programs experienced revenue growth of
$4,738,000 in fiscal year 1993 when compared with fis-
cal year 1992. Revenues from the TACJAM-A program,
a major electronic countermeasures program, contrib-
uted $12,996,000 for fiscal year 1993 as compared to
$6,128,000 for fiscal year 1992. That revenue growth
combined with a revenue growth of $7,636,000 in the
Band 9/10 program, another electronic countermeasures
program, were partially offset by a decline in revenues
from a major electronic countermeasures program with a
foreign government which contributed only $5,310,000 to
revenues in fiscal year 1993, down from $15,746,000 in
fiscal year 1992.

Operating income was $2,143,000 in fiscal year 1993
as compared with $5,323,000 in fiscal year 1992. The
decline in sales and service revenues for fiscal year
1993 had a corresponding adverse impact on gross mar-
gins. Operating income for fiscal year 1993 was also ad-
versely impacted by $2,500,000 resulting from net
unfavorable contract performance adjustments to final
cost estimates. The fiscal year 1993 adjustments in-
cluded additional contract loss allowances of $1,800,000



10 Section 1: General

and $1,100,000 established for the AN/ALR-67 ASR pro-
gram and the AN/FSQ-T22 program, respectively. Fiscal
year 1992 performance adjustments were essentially off-
setting. Administrative and selling expenses for fiscal
year 1993 were fairly consistent with the amount of ex-
penses reported for fiscal year 1992. However, due to
the decline in revenues, administrative and selling ex-
penses, which are generally fixed, increased significantly
as a percentage of revenues. Operating income in fiscal
year 1993 was adversely impacted by costs associated
with restructuring, corporate downsizing, and consolida-
tion of resources, which increased by approximately
$1,200,000 from the amount of similar costs recorded in
the prior year. Such costs were allocated to the Com-
pany’s contracts as well as administrative and selling ex-
penses, thereby, representing contributing factors to the
aforementioned comparisons of contracts’ gross mar-
gins, contracts’ performance adjustments and adminis-
trative and selling expenses. Finally, fiscal year 1993 had
reduced bid and proposal activity, decreasing related
costs by $2,215,000 from fiscal year 1992, and growth in
research and development activity, increasing related
costs by $759,000 from fiscal year 1992.

Interest expense in fiscal year 1993 was $2,418,000
as compared with $3,272,000 in fiscal year 1992. The
decrease was due to lower average borrowing levels
combined with lower average interest rates. The lower
borrowing levels in fiscal year 1993 were due to reduc-
tions in short-term and long-term borrowings which oc-
curred primarily in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 1992
and resulted from cash provided by the settiement of a
claim in February 1992. The claim settlement, which re-
sulted in a gain of $14,368,000 being recognized in fiscal
year 1992, related to the redemption of the Company’s
shares in Tadiran, Ltd. Investment income for fiscal year
1993 was $843,000 as compared to $322,000 in fiscal
year 1992. The increase was due to the investment of
funds received from the aforementioned claim settlement
with Tadiran, Ltd. Finally, in fiscal year 1993 the Com-
pany established an allowance of $2,200,000 relating to
a settlement of civil claims pertaining to the pricing of a
1985 fixed-price contract modification.

The Company adopted Statement of Financial Ac-
counting Standards (SFAS) No. 109, “Accounting for In-
come Taxes,” in fiscal year 1993. As permitted under
SFAS No. 109, the Company has not restated the prior
year's financial statements to apply the provisions of
SFAS No. 109. The cumulative effect of the accounting
change as of the beginning of fiscal year 1993 was
$2,540,000 or $.64 per share, primarily resulting from the
recording of tax benefits related to contract loss provi-
sions recorded in prior years and adjusting tax rates on
previously recorded tax assets and liabilities. The effect
of the adoption of SFAS No. 109 on the income tax pro-
vision for fiscal year 1993 decreased net income by
$920,000, or $.24 per share, primarily related to the es-
tablishment of a valuation allowance for the deferred tax
assets. Extraordinary credits were recognized in fiscal
year 1992 based on the carryforward of losses from prior
years.

Results of Operations — Qutlook for Fiscal Year 1995

The Company completed fiscal year 1994 with a firm or-
ders backlog of $121,478,000, approximately 22% lower
than the backlog amount reported at the end of fiscal
year 1993. It is anticipated that approximately 70% of the
backlog will be completed in fiscal year 1995, thereby
contributing to sales and service revenues for that year.
Sales and service revenues in fiscal year 1995 are ex-
pected to approximate the level reported in fiscal year
1994, however, revenues recognized will be partially de-
pendent upon the timing and amounts of anticipated new
orders. The level of new orders in fiscal year 1995 is ex-
pected to exceed the level of new orders received in
1994. The backlog at February 25, 1994, included an un-
funded amount of $14,747,000.

Fiscal year 1995 operating results will be influenced by
various internal and external factors. The Company is
presently engaged in several programs involving compli-
cated engineering development efforts and, as is the
case with most development efforts, technical and other
complexities are often encountered. These complexities
have resulted in increased contract cost estimates in the
past and could have the same result in the future. The
Company could also encounter similar risks on other
long-term contracts as well as research and develop-
ment efforts, and such factors could impact future oper-
ating results. In addition, the Company continues to seek
high-technology seed programs which are intended to
provide a base for the Company’s future operations.
Such programs may require contract investment provi-
sions or significant Company-sponsored research and
development expenditures, both reflecting the Com-
pany’s commitment of its own funds.

Ongoing changes in many countries around the world
have resulted in the U.S. Government reassessing its
approach to national defense spending. Although it is
clear that defense spending will continue to decline, it is
unclear how that spending will be redirected. Manage-
ment is continuing its strategic planning efforts in order to
enhance the Company’s ability to be responsive to the
Government’s requirements and to select products and
business areas which will enable the Company to effec-
tively compete and perform in a very demanding market-
place. Although the uncentainties of future world events
and the corresponding changes in national defense
spending hang over the defense industry, the Company’s
products, heavily concentrated in the field of defense
electronics, and management’s constant thrust to im-
prove its design, manufacturing and quality systems,
provide the Company with the prerequisites to be com-
petitive. The U.S. Government and its suppliers continue
to be the most significant customers of the Company,
and a significant reduction in one or more of the
Company’s major defense programs, existing or antici-
pated, could adversely effect the Company’s future
operating results.
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The Company from time to time is subject to claims
and investigations arising from the conduct of its busi-
ness with the U.S. Government. Under one such investi-
gation, the Company has supplied the Inspector General
of the Department of Defense with certain documents re-
lated to the AN/MLQ-T4 Ground Jammer program. At
this time, management is unable to determine when the
Government will complete its investigation or whether the
Government will seek remedies as a result of its investi-
gation. This matter and other ongoing legal matters
which may impact future operating results are described
in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s consolidated balance sheet at
February 25, 1994 contains a net deferred tax asset of
$2,896,000 including a valuation allowance of
$1,180,000 primarily for the uncertainty relating to the
realization of future income tax benefits. The Company
believes it is more likely than not that the majority of the
net deferred tax asset will be realized through future re-
versals of existing taxable temporary differences and fu-
ture taxable income. The Company’s conclusion that it is
“more likely than not” that the majority of the deferred
tax asset will be realized is based on a history of earn-
ings, forecasted earnings for fiscal year 1995 and the
prospects for continued earnings after 1995. However,
significant subsequent events related to the uncertainties
discussed above could have a material adverse effect on
expected future income and, consequently, the realiza-
tion of the Company’s deferred tax asset. The Company
will continue to periodically review the tax criteria related
to the recognition of the deferred tax asset.

Inflation

Because the Company’s products and services are pre-
dominantly custom-made, the impact of inflation on oper-
ating results is typically not significant. The Company at-
tempts to alleviate inflationary pressures by increasing
selling prices to help offset rising costs (subject to com-
petitive conditions and regulatory requirements), increas-
ing productivity and improving design and manufacturing
techniques.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company’s primary source of short-term financing is
from cost reimbursements under contracts with the U.S.
Government and its suppliers. That financing is supple-
mented, when necessary, through the liquidation of
short-term investments and borrowings under a line of
credit agreement. Cash flows in fiscal year 1994 were
provided through operations and liquidation of market-
able securities, and were absorbed to repay long-term
debt and fund capital expenditures. At February 25,
1994, the Company has available cash and equivalents
and liquid marketable securities of approximately
$11,800,000, and a line of credit agreement providing for

borrowings up to $5,000,000. The line of credit agree-
ment expires June 30, 1994, at which time the Company
expects to renew the agreement at essentially the same
terms and for an amount required to satisfy its needs for
the foreseeable future. The Company’s second install-
ment repayment of $3,300,000, on its 10.03% unsecured
note obligation is due April 1994. The Company has ex-
ercised an option to accelerate the repayment of an ad-
ditional $1,700,000. This additional payment will reduce
the maturity of the unsecured note obligation from April
1998 to April 1997. See Note 4 to the consolidated finan-
cial statements for the aggregate maturities of long-term
borrowings over the next five fiscal years. The Com-
pany’s ratio of current assets to current liabilities de-
creased from 2.1 to 1 at February 26, 1993, to 2 to 1 at
February 25, 1994, and the long-term debt to equity ratio
decreased from .4 to 1 at February 26 1993, to .3to 1 at
February 25, 1994.

During fiscal year 1994, the Company completed con-
struction of a major building addition at its Richardson
Road facility. The total cost, including related expendi-
tures, of approximately $4,300,000 was funded through
the sale of marketable securities. No major building addi-
tions are planned in fiscal year 1995 and beyond.

In 1993, the Company agreed to pay $2,200,000 in
settlement of civil claims pertaining to the pricing of a
1985 fixed-price contract modification. The Company
paid $1,100,000 in July 1993 and will pay the balance in
July 1994,

With a substantial amount of highly liquid assets and a
strong working capital position at February 25, 1994,
capital resources should be sufficient to meet the Com-
pany’s operating needs for the foreseeable future, as
well as long-term debt maturities and other anticipated
cash outlays.

RUBBERMAID INCORPORATED (DEC)

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS

Results of Operations

Net sales for 1994 were $2.169 billion — up 11% from
$1.960 billion in 1993, a record performance for the 43rd
consecutive year. Volume was up 12%, including 3%
from acquisitions, net of divestitures, while pricing was
down 1%. Sales growth was stimulated by a record level
of new product introductions and aggressive marketing
and advertising which made consumers conscious of the
value and innovation of those products. Net sales in
1993 were up 9% from 1992, due to increased unit
volume.
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Emphasis on worldwide opportunities and global ex-
pansion in 1994 resulted in international sales growth
outpacing the domestic growth rate. Significant contribu-
tions from operations outside the United States as well
as export activities underscored the Company’s ex-
panded presence in international markets.

In September, the Company announced selling price
increases to help offset a dramatic escalation in resin
costs. Selling prices were increased product-by-product
and business-by-business, as necessary, but did not be-
gin to have an impact on results until late in the fourth
quarter.

Net earnings in 1994 were a record $228.1 million, or
$1.42 per share, up 8% from $211.4 million, or $1.32 per
share, in 1993. Record 1994 earnings marked the 57th
consecutive year of profitable performance by the Com-
pany. The earnings increase reflects the Company’s con-
tinued emphasis on strong unit growth, productivity
improvements, vigorous cost control measures, and
better factory utilization.

Before adoption of FAS 106, “Employers’ Accounting
for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions,” 1992
net earnings were $184.2 million, or $1.15 per share. Af-
ter the FAS 106 accounting change, which resulted in a
one-time after-tax charge of $20.1 million, or $.13 per
share, 1992 earnings were $164.1 million, or $1.02 per
share.

Cost of sales as a percent of net sales was 67.6%,
65.6%, and 66.5% in 1994, 1993, and 1992, respec-
tively. The 1994 increase reflects escalating materials
costs, particularly sharp resin cost increases which be-
gan in the third quarter and continued rising at high rates
in the fourth quarter. By the end of 1994, resin market
prices were 80% above levels earlier in the year. The
1993 improvement versus 1992 primarily reflected favor-
able manufacturing cost trends including a more efficient
loading of factories and a LIFO reserve reduction. Resin
prices, which were slighlty lower on average in 1993
compared with 1992, were stable throughout 1993.

Selling, general, and administrative expenses as a per-
cent of net sales were 16.0%, 16.8%, and 17.2% in
1994, 1993, and 1992, respectively. These costs as a
percent of net sales continue to decline year-over-year,
primarily as a result of productivity improvements which
allow the expense level to be leveraged over greater vol-
ume, partially offset by an increase in advertising and
promotion expense.

Miscellaneous, net includes items such as income
from minority interests in joint ventures, royalty income,
foreign exchange gains and losses, amortization of intan-
gible assets, and gains and losses on the disposal of
property, plant, and equipment. Increased income in
1994 versus 1993 primarily reflects certain gains recog-
nized from 1994 divestitures and a reduction in the loss
on disposal of equipment.

The effective income tax rate as a percent of earnings
before income taxes and cumulative effect of changes in
accounting principles was 37.9%. 38.2%, and 37.4% for
1994, 1993, and 1992, respectively. The increase in the
effective rate in 1993 compared to 1992 is due to the im-
pact of the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act, which in-
creased the corporate federal income tax rate on
domestic income from 34% to 35%.

Outlook for 1995

Looking toward 1995, the Company anticipates contin-
ued sales growth through new product introductions,
business development activities, and increased price re-
alization. Earnings growth is expected to trail sales in-
creases due to the lag in phasing-in selling price in-
creases to recoup escalating resin costs. Pressure on
margins is expected to abate during the year as resin
cost increases start to slow and are more fully offset by
higher selling prices.

Capital Resources and Liquidity

The Company’s financial position continues to be solid.
Growth has been financed through a combination of
cash provided from operations and new equity issues,
and to a lesser extent through long-term debt financing.
Cash provided from operating activities is the primary
source of liquidity and amounted to $212 million in 1994,
$289 million in 1993, and $177 million in 1992.

The Company has relationships with commercial
banks that informally have committed to provide approxi-
mately $115 million to finance fluctuations in working
capital and, if necessary, to provide other funds for op-
erations until term financing is secured. Long-term fi-
nancing is negotiated as necessary to meet growth
requirements. Newly issued equity may be used in the
future to finance acquisitions. Internally generated funds
have principally been used to finance capital expendi-
tures, provide working capital, acquire businesses, repur-
chase Common Shares, and pay dividends. During
1994, the Company issued approximately 2.2 million
Common Shares in connection with the acquisition of
Empire Brushes, Inc. In addition, as part of a program
authorized by the Board of Directors, the Company pur-
chased approximately 1.8 million Common Shares for its
treasury at an aggregate cost of $48.7 million.

Each year for the past 40 years dividends paid per
share have increased. The Company’s objective is to
pay approximately 30% of current year's earnings as
dividends and retain sufficient capital for future invest-
ment opportunities to grow sales and earnings at the ob-
jective annual rate of 15%.
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In 1994, the Company invested $118 million in prop-
erty, plant, and equipment to expand capacity, improve
productivity, and tool new products. Investments con-
tinue to be made in new equipment throughout the Com-
pany to support productivity improvements and cost
reduction programs. Tooling was purchased for a wide
variety of new products and to add capacity for existing
products. In addition, the Company made an investment
to build and equip a European production facility at
Differdange, Luxembourg, primarily for the Little Tikes
business. For 1995, investments in excess of the 1994
level have been budgeted to be funded from operations.

Working capital, excluding cash and cash equivalents
and marketable securities, increased $103.4 million in
1994. The net change reflects the incremental increase
arising from business development activities, an increase
in receivables, and a decrease in core inventory levels
as well as an increase in other accrued liabilities.

Acquisitions. In June 1994, the Company acquired
Carex Inc., a manufacturer and marketer of bath safety
products, personal care accesories, and other products
for the aging and physically challenged, in a cash trans-
action accounted for as a purchase, and Empire
Brushes, Inc., a manufacturer and marketer of brushes,
brooms, and mops for home and commercial use, in a
stock transaction accounted for as a purchase. In Octo-
ber 1994, the Company acquired the assets of Glen-
wood Systems Pty. Lid. and related companies,
well-known in Australia as Ausplay, an innovative de-
signer and marketer of high-quality commercial play-
ground equipment, in a cash transaction accounted for
as a purchase.

Divestitures. In September 1994, the Company sold its
casual outdoor resin furniture business. in November
1994, the Company sold the assets of the Davson Divi-
sion of Rubbermaid Office Products.

Joint Ventures. In April 1994, the Company completed
a previously announced joint venture with Richell Corpo-
ration, a leading Japanese housewares manufacturer.
The joint venture, Rubbermaid Japan, Inc., develops,
markets, and sells housewares, leisure, and seasonal
products for the Japanese market. The Company initially
held a 40% equity interest in the venture and, in October
1994, exercised an option to increase its equity interest
to 51%.

In May 1994, the Company ended its European house-
wares joint venture with DSM, the Dutch chemical group.
Under the terms of the dissolution agreement, the Com-
pany is free to enter the European housewares market
on an unrestricted basis in March 1995. Prior to its termi-
nation, the Company’s 40% interest in the joint venture
was accounted for by the equity method.

In January 1995, the Company formed Royal
Rubbermaid Structures, Ltd., a joint venture with Royal
Plastics Group Limited of Canada, for the manufacture
and marketing of modular plastic components and kits
for small structures, such as storage buildings and
sheds. Each partner owns 50% of the joint venture.

The business development activities described above
had no material effect on the 1994 financial statements.

Environmental Program

The Company is subject to various laws and regulations
concerning environmental matters and employee safety
and health in the United States and other countries. The
Occupational Safety and Health Administration, the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency, and other federal
agencies have authority to promulgate regulations that
have an impact on the Company’s operations. Many
state and local governments also have adopted environ-
mental and employee safety and health laws and regula-
tions. Federal and state authorities may seek fines and
penalties for violation of these laws and regulations. As
part of its continuing environmental program, the Com-
pany has been able to comply with regulations and re-
quirements of state and federal agencies without any
materially adverse effect on its business.

The Company is committed to a long-term environ-
mental protection program which is managed by the
Company’s environmental council. The council meets
regularly and assesses the impact of environmental laws
and regulations on the Company’s operations. In addi-
tion, the Company uses outside firms to perform regular
environmental audits of its facilities that have, to date, re-
vealed no significant environmental problems.

VARIAN ASSOCIATES, INC. (SEP)
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Results of Operations

Net earnings for 1994 grew 73% to $79.4 million ($2.22
per share), compared to the $45.8 million ($1.26 per
share) earned in the prior year. 1992's net earnings were
$38.6 million ($1.02 per share). Earnings for the fourth
quarter of 1994 rose 50% over the prior year’s quarter to
$27.0 million ($0.76 per share).

Orders for the year reached a new high of $1.71 bil-
lion. Fourth quarter orders of $421 million were up 16%
from the year-ago quarter. Sales for the year rose 18%
to a record $1.55 billion, from the prior year's $1.31 bil-
lion, and also reached a quarterly high of $441 million.
Backlog at the end of the year was $775 million com-
pared to $627 million and $561 million at years ended in
1993 and 1992, respectively.

Varian’s four core businesses all benefited from the
combination of good order levels and improved
efficiency.
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Good worldwide demand for Varian’s cancer therapy
equipment and X-ray tubes drove orders and sales for
the Company’s Health Care System business up 10%
over 1993. Profits climbed 15% from the prior year.
Backlog rose slightly over last year’s level. The good per-
formance reflected both the Company’s continued
strength in the radiation oncology market as well as
strong results from its X-ray tube business. in the latter
sector, steps to strengthen its distribution system and re-
lationships with key original equipment manufacturers
more than offset soft demand for the diagnostic equip-
ment that uses the tubes. Demand for radiation therapy
equipment continued to grow on a worldwide basis due
to its efficacy and cost-effectiveness. The Company’s
multi-year program to expand its share of the overseas
market resulted in 35% of 1994 orders coming from inter-
national customers.

Instruments orders advanced slightly during the year,
as strength in the Company’s vacuum products line over-
came the effects of generally slow demand in the analyti-
cal instrument market. Sales rose 6%, while operating
profits declined slightly from 1993, because of competi-
tive industry pricing conditions. Backlog also declined 6%
from the prior year.

Orders for Varian's Semiconductor Equipment busi-
ness rose 87% over 1993 to $610 million, as chip manu-
facturers worldwide continued to invest in new
equipment for the next generation of advanced devices.
Sales climbed 64% from 1993's level, and operating
profits reached $36 million, rising from $1 million in 1993.
Backlog more than doubled to $245 million at year's end.
The upswing in Semiconductor Equipment performance
was based on strong global demand for all of its major
product lines. Continued market growth in the U.S. and
Korea was further strengthened by improving momentum
in Europe and recently in Japan. The discontinuance of
the semiconductor equipment distribution agreement
with Tokyo Electron Limited in the U.S. and Europe was
completed as planned effective September 30, 1994.
Semiconductor equipment orders and sales growth will
be moderated by discontinuation of the distribution of
TEL products. The impact on Semiconductor Equipment
earnings is expected to be minimal under the terms of
the termination, which includes payments to the Com-
pany for certain future TEL sales.

Orders for the Electron Devices business increased
7% during 1994, with modest growth in both the com-
mercial and defense sectors. Sales fell slightly, but oper-
ating profits rose 50% over 1993, an increase for the
second year in a row. The profit improvement was evi-
dent across a wide variety of product lines in 1994. Back-
log advanced 9% from year-end 1993.

Spending on research and development continued at
approximately 5% of sales. Research and development
expense in 1994 was $81.3 million, compared to $73.9
million and $76.7 million in 1993 and 1992, respectively.

Net interest expense in 1994 declined to $2.0 million
compared to $4.5 million and $3.2 million in 1993 and
1992, respectively.

The effective tax rate for 1994 was 38%, the same as
both of the two preceding years. See Summary of Signifi-
cant Accounting Policies in Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Financial Condition

The Company'’s financial condition remained strong dur-
ing 1994. Operating activities provided cash of $120.3
million compared to $89.8 million in 1993. Investing ac-
tivities used $51.4 million and $57.9 million in 1994, and
1993, respectively, mainly for the purchase of property,
plant, and equipment. Financing activities used $61.4
million during 1994 as compared to $28.1 million during
1993. $36.1 million was used to buy back shares of the
Company’s outstanding stock under a share reduction
program, and to offset the issuance of stock to employ-
ees. Net payments of $18.1 million decreased total debt
as a percentage of total capital to 12.7% at the end of fis-
cal 1994 as compared with 16.8% a year ago. Cash and
cash equivalents were $78.9 million at year-end, exceed-
ing all short- and long-term debt of $65.2 million. The ra-
tio of current assets to current liabilities remained at 1.55
to 1 at fiscal year-end 1994, unchanged from fiscal year-
end 1993. Quarterly dividends were increased from $.05
to $.06 per share in the second quarter of fiscal 1994.
The Company has available $50 million in unused lines
of credit. .

Outlook

Despite the favorable financial results described above,
future revenue and profitability remain difficult to predict.
The Company continues to face various risks associated
with its business operations including uncertain general
worldwide economic conditions, lingering worldwide
recessionary conditions, new product acceptance, and
uncertainty regarding possible legislation and private
initiatives in the U.S. to control health care costs. Such
conditions could affect the Company’s future perfor-
mance.

On October 20, 1994, the Company announced that it
will seek a buyer for the Electron Devices operations.
The sale will not go forward unless the selling price rec-
ognizes the increased profitability and improving value
attained in the business in recent years.

The Company’s operations are subject to various fed-
eral, state, and/or local laws regulating the discharge of
materials to the environment or otherwise relating to the
protection of the environment, such as discharges to soil,
waters, and air, and the generation, handling, storage,
transportation, and disposal of waste and hazardous
substances. These laws have the effect of increasing
costs and potential liabilities associated with the conduct
of such operations. The Company has also been named
by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency or third
parties as a potentially responsible party under the
Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation
and Liability Act of 1980, as amended, at seven sites to
which Varian is alleged to have shipped manufacturing
waste for disposal. The Company is also involved in vari-
ous stages of environmental investigation and/or reme-
diation under the direction of, or in consultation with,
local and/or state agencies at certain current or former
Company facilities. Uncertainty as to (a) the extent to
which the Company caused, if at all, the conditions being
investigated, (b) the extent of environmental contamina-
tion and risks, (c) the applicability of changing and com-
plex environmental laws, (d) the number and financial



Information Required by SEC Regulations 15

viability of other potentially responsible parties, (e) the
stage of the investigation and/or remediation, (f) the un-
predictability of investigation and/or remediation costs
(including as to when they will be incurred), (g) applica-
ble clean-up standards, (h) the remediation (if any) which
will ultimately be required, and (i) available technology
make it difficult to assess the likelihood and scope of fur-
ther investigation or remediation activities or to estimate
the future costs of such activities if undertaken. In addi-
tion, the Company believes that it has rights to contribu-
tion and/or reimbursement from financially viable,
potentially responsible parties and/or insurance compa-
nies, and has filed a lawsuit against 36 insurance com-
panies with respect to most of the above-referenced
sites. The Company has established reserves for these
environmental matters, which reserves management
believes are adequate. Based on information currently
available, management believes that the costs of these
matters are otherwise not reasonably likely to have a

material adverse effect on the financial condition of the

Company.

Prospective Information Excerpts
CPC INTERNATIONAL INC. (DEC)

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS

Overview of 1994 and Outlook for 1995

CPC International’s primary objective continued to be to
improve shareholder value through focused development
of its two businesses, consumer foods and corn refining.
The Company’s strategy for its consumer foods business
is to pursue growth worldwide in its core businesses:
soups, sauces, bouillons, and related products; dress-
ings; and foodservice. For the corn refining business,
CPC'’s strategy is to maximize its return through a combi-
nation of improving profitability, investing selectivity for
growth, and leveraging this business’ strength through
strategic relationships.

In line with these strategies, during 1994 the Company
continued to build volume growth in all its existing busi-
nesses; introduced many new products throughout the
world in both the consumer foods and corn refining busi-
nesses; established two strategic alliances in Latin
America; acquired businesses in the U.S., Europe, and
Asia; expanded and built production facilities; and under-
took a major restructuring program.

These actions resulted in a solid earnings gain, ex-
cluding the restructuring charge of $227 million, even
though the following conditions held back growth: in
North America, high commodity costs together with con-
sumer concerns over fat consumption reduced demand
in several important product categories; economic diffi-
culties in Brazil reduced food purchases by consumers
for several months; and European currency values in
1994, compared to the prior year, were unfavorable for
most of the year.

In 1995 the conditions relating to consumption, cost,
currency values, competition, and political and social en-
vironments in the economies and industries in which
CPC operates are, overall, not expected to change sig-
nificantly. It is expected that in 1995 economies in most
areas of the world will continue to progress at current,
generally modest, rates of growth. More specifically:

e Inthe U.S. itis expected that economic growth will re-
main at a level similar to 1994. It is likely that this will
benefit the Company, as will Best Foods’ increased
offerings of reduced and low fat products and other
new products.

¢ In Europe the economic recovery in progress is ex-
pected to continue steadily in northern countries but
remain weak in the south. Currency values on aver-
age in 1995 are likely to be close to 1994 levels.
Competition will continue strong as the European
Union’s food manufacturers and retail trade con-
tinue to seek efficiencies. These factors will con-
tinue to have a moderating effect on the division’s
volumes and margins, and therefore its sales and
profit growth. CPC’s leading brands, wide geo-
graphic presence, and its new products and busi-
nesses are expected to provide the needed
strength to counteract these forces.

e |n Latin America the currency devaluations in
Mexico, beginning in December 1994, and the re-
sulting capital flight and economic disruption will
significantly reduce new capital inflows into the area
and therefore moderate the rate of business growth.
A widening of the Mexican crisis to other Latin
American countries cannot be ruled out. However, it
is more likely that Mexico will regain economic sta-
bility in 1995 and thereby restore a level of confi-
dence in that country and the rest of Latin America.
Apart from that, Latin America’s freer markets and
open borders of recent years have led to higher re-
gional business activity that should continue to
benefit income and consumption levels. CPC, with
its strong market positions throughout the area, is
expected to make good progress in 1995, even with
economic conditions somewhat less favorable than
in 1994.
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e In Asia economic growth in 1995 is expected to re-
main good. Because the Company’s products have
relatively low market penetration in most countries
in that area, CPC continues to see important oppor-
tunities for strong growth in its businesses there.

e The worldwide restructuring program initiated in
1994 will continue to be implemented during 1995
and 1996. The resulting cost benefits from greater
efficiencies are expected to enhance CPC’s com-
petitive position, particularly in Europe and North
America.

The last three years’ financial results are discussed

below. A general description of operations appears on
pages 2 through 21 of this report.

GTI CORPORATION (DEC)
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Prospective Information

The Company believes that future results of operations
will be influenced by a number of factors, including gen-
eral economic conditions, the continued growth in the
LAN and internetworking markets, timely new product in-
troductions, dependence on key OEM customers, market
acceptance of the new networking technologies, the fu-
ture performance of Promptus, and numerous competi-
tive factors. It is anticipated that the Company’s operat-
ing results in the foreseeable future will remain
dependent on the success of the networking products
segment in identifying, developing, manufacturing, and
marketing new products or enhancing existing products.

The Company’s future operating results will also de-
pend on the growth of broad-band global services and
high-speed digital network applications, which Promptus’
products support. Promptus’ growth will depend on sev-
eral factors, including the growth in the deployment of
digital-switched services and related market for ISDN
customer-premise equipment, significant expansion of
marketing activities, and expansion of its product line
and customer base as well as the ability to compete ef-
fectively in the videoconferencing access market and in
applications other than videoconferencing.

The majority of the networking products segment sales
continue to be derived from products that support
Ethernet and 10Base-T applications. This segment’s op-
erating results could be affected if there is an unex-
pected change in such technologies or if the Company
does not respond appropriately to expected changes.
The networking products segment is supplying OEMs
with product compliant with all relevant IEEE, ANSI, and
asynchronous transfer mode (“ATM”) forum standards
for 100 Base-TX Fast Ethernet, TP/PMD (FDDI over cop-
per), and 155 Mbps ATM applications. The success of
these new products is dependent on many factors, such
as industry differences over standardization, timely prod-
uct introduction, and market acceptance as well as the
Company’s ability to manufacture its products in suffi-

cient quantities to meet anticipated demand. The inability
of these advanced networking modes to gain market ac-
ceptance or potential delays of the widespread installa-
tion of such products could subject this segment’s
existing products to increased competition and pricing
pressure, which would adversely affect the Company’s
operating results.

The Company’s future performance will also be af-
fected by the volume, mix, and timing of orders received
during a particular quarterly period. If anticipated orders
do not develop or changes in delivery schedules or
cancellation of orders occur, expenditure and inventory
levels could be disproportionately high and the
Company’s operating results for that period would be
adversely affected.

The Company will continue to manage its mature elec-
tronic components and distribution products segments
for cash flow and profitability. With the consummation of
the Promptus acquisition, management is reviewing the
strategic significance of these business units or parts
thereof. Presently, it is not possible to assess the out-
come of this review or to predict whether or not a sale of
these business units, if desired by the Company, could
be consummated on acceptable terms.

Because of the factors above, as well as other factors,
historical operating results should not be relied upon as
an indicator of future performance.

SUNDSTRAND CORPORATION (DEC)
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Outlook

Industrial

The outlook for the Company’s Industrial businesses is
quite favorable. Our businesses have strong franchises
in mature, cyclical markets, and they produce above av-
erage profitability and excellent cash flow. Continuing
strength in the U.S. industrial economy, along with a re-
covering European economy and penetration of more
rapidly growing economies in the rest of the world,
should allow the Industrial segment to continue to grow
while earning significant operating margins. The growth
of this segment may require additional capital expendi-
tures in certain businesses for increases in capacity. In-
dustrial companies or products with specific charac-
teristics also may present attractive acquisition targets
for the Company.

Aerospace

The commercial aerospace industry worldwide is ex-
pected to experience moderate growth through the end
of the decade. The Company’s Aerospace business has
a strong market position, and is poised to benefit from
anticipated worldwide growth in revenue passenger
miles which ultimately results in increased demand for
new aircraft.
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Major reductions in military spending, however, are ex-
pected to negatively impact the Company’s manufactur-
ing load over an extended period of time. In addition, the
current reduced rate of new aircraft acquisitions by world
airlines, the migration to twin-engine planes, and im-
proved reliability of the Company’s products also have
impacted the manufacturing load. This has resulted in
the profitability of the Aerospace segment becoming in-
creasingly volume sensitive.

Increases in manufacturing productivity accompanied
by recent reductions in manufacturing volume have re-
sulted in excess manufacturing and engineering capac-
ity, along with related overheads. In response to this
situation, the Company’s Board of Directors on February
21, 1995, approved a restructuring plan that will result in
a first quarter pretax charge of $58 million. The charge
will be taken to cover the one-time costs of reducing ex-
cess manufacturing capacity by closing its facility in
Lima, Ohio, reducing the engineering overhead in the
Company’s Aerospace segment, and writing down the
assets of two non-core product lines.

The anticipated net effects of additional non-accrued
expenses, restructuring savings, and related nonrecur-
ring gains are a pretax loss of approximately $7 million in
1995 and pretax earnings of approximately $20 million in
1996. The restructuring is expected to reduce cash flow
by about $16 million in 1995 and provide a cash flow
benefit of about $8 million in 1996.

Forecast
In its quarterly earnings release of February 22, 1995,
the Company forecast for 1995 a sales increase of about
5 percent which should resulit in earnings per share in a
range of $3.25 to $3.45, excluding the effects of the pre-
viously discussed restructuring and any additional share
repurchases. Order trends support this forecast.
Industrial sales in 1995 are expected to increase by
about 10 percent and, excluding the first quarter charge,
yield an operating profit margin of about 17 percent of
sales. Aerospace sales are expected to be relatively flat
in 1995 with an operating profit margin of approximately
13 percent of sales, excluding the effects of the
restructuring.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 14 re-
quires that financial statements presented in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles include
specified information relating to a reporting entity's op-
erations in different industries, its foreign operations and
export sales, and its major customers. SFAS No. 14 de-
scribes the information to be presented and the formats
for presenting such information. Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 21 amends SFAS No. 74 by
stating that the requirements of SFAS No. 14 do not ap-
ply to nonpublic enterprises.

Table 1-3 shows the type of segment information
most frequently presented as an integral part of the 1994
financial statements of the survey companies. Examples
of segment information disclosures follow.

TABLE 1-3: SEGMENT INFORMATION

Number of Companies
1994 1993 1992 1991

Industry segments
Revenue .................... 350 354 363 367
Operating income orloss . . . .... 301 317 322 332
Identifiable assets............. 343 349 352 355
Depreciation expense . . ........ 339 349 348 352
Capital expenditures . .......... 339 346 343 347
Geographic areas
Revenue .................... 259 250 238 234
Operating income orloss ... ..... 201 198 180 189
Identifiable assets............. 250 238 229 222
Depreciation expense ... ....... 16 17 16 15
Capital expenditures........... 17 20 20 17
Exportsales................... 160 142 143 148
Sales to major customers ........ 170 160 154 142
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Industry Segments
DOLE FOOD COMPANY, INC. (DEC)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 13-Industry and Geographic Area Segment
Information

The Company’s major operations are in Food Products,
Real Estate and Resorts. The Food Products segment
procures, grows, processes and markets fruits, vege-
tables and nuts in the following locations: (1) North
America; (2) Latin America—principally Chile, Colombia,
Costa Rica, Ecuador, Honduras and Panama; (3) Asia—
principally Japan, the Philippines and Thailand; and (4)
Europe—principally Germany, France and ltaly. Real es-
tate activities are conducted in the United States and
consist primarily of holding, developing, operating and
selling residential and commercial real estate. Resorts
include two luxury hotels on the Island of Lana'i in
Hawaii.

Revenue, operating income, identifiable assets, capital
expenditures and depreciation and amortization pertain-
ing to the industries and geographic areas in which the
Company operates are presented below. Product trans-
fers between geographic areas are accounted for based
on the estimated fair market value of the products.

(in millions) 1994 1993 1992
Revenue

Food Products
North America........... $1,933 $1,890 $1,997
Latin America. ........... 677 640 924
Asia................... 842 700 648
Europe................. 777 577 488
Intercompany elimination . . (731) (699) (937)
Total Food Products. . . .. 3,498 3,108 3,120
RealEstate ............... 297 284 230
Resorts.................. 47 39 26
$3,842 $3,431 $3,376

Operating Income
Food Products

North America........... $(8) $39 $40
Latin America. ........... 131 62 64
Asia................... 16 77 83
Europe................. 13 — 10
Total food Products. . . .. 152 178 197
RealEstate ............... 73 64 53
Resorts.................. (37) (40) (41)
Corporate and unallocated . . . (14) 17) (24)
Cost reduction program . . . . . — (43) (46)

$174 $142 $139

(in millions) 1994 1993 1992

Identifiable Assets
Food Products

North America. ........... $1,065 $1,043 $999
Latin America ............ 776 707 695
Asia.................... 332 266 248
Europe ................. 339 211 85
Total Food Products . . ... 2,512 2,227 2,027
Real Estate................ 946 788 715
Resorts .................. 336 316 301
Corporate................. 55 57 52
$3,849 $3,388 $3,095

Capital Expenditures
Food Products . . ........... $212 $174 $164
RealEstate................ 9 9 18
Resorts .................. 19 36 10

$240 $219 $192

Depreciation and Amortization

Food Products . ............ $117 $100 $88
RealEstate................ 10 12 5
Resorts .................. 18 16 15
Corporate and unallocated. . . . 3 5 2

$148 $133 $110

Notes: Food Products revenue includes inter-area transfers from
Latin America to North America, Asia and Europe of $444 million in
1994, $418 million in 1993 and $731 million in 1992; inter-area
transfers from Asia to North America and Europe of $190 million in
1994, $227 million in 1993 and $206 million in 1992; inter-area
transfers from North America to Asia and Europe of $77 million in
1994, $38 million in 1993 and zero in 1992; and inter-area transfers
from Europe to North America, Asia and Latin America of $20 mil-
lion in 1994, $16 million in 1993 and zero in 1992.

The cost reduction program charge included in operating income
for 1993 is related to the Food Products segment. The cost reduc-
tion program charge included in operating income for 1992 is alloc-
able to the following segments: Food Products-$43 million, Real
Estate-$3 million.
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THE TIMKEN COMPANY (DEC)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 12 (In Part): Segment Information

The company manufactures products that fall into two
major classifications. The first includes anti-friction bear-
ings used in a multitude of applications to reduce friction
and conserve energy. The second classification is steel
products of alloy, intermediate alloy and carbon grades.
Sales of these products are made predominantly to
manufacturers in the automotive, machinery, railroad,
aerospace and agricultural industries, and to service re-
placement markets following normal credit practices.

Net sales by segment include sales to both unaffili-
ated customers and intersegment sales. Intersegment
sales and transfers between geographic areas are ac-
counted for at values based on market prices.

Information by Industry

(Thousands of Dollars) Bearing Steel Consolidated
1994
Netsales(1) ........... $1312,323 - $618,028  $1,930,351
Operating income.. . ... .. 84,924 53,651 138,575
Assets employed

atyearend .......... 1,117,762 740,972 1,858,734
Depreciation and

amortization. . ........ 64,487 54,768 119,255
Capital expenditures . . . . . 88,585 31,071 119,656
1993
Netsales(1) ........... $1,153,987 $554,774  $1,708,761
Operating income(2). . . . . 12,821 7,635 20,456
Assets employed

atvearend .......... 996,549 793,170 1,789,719
Depreciation and

amortization. . ........ 62,965 55,438 118,403
Capital expenditures . . . .. 72915 20,025 92,940
1992
Netsales(1) ........... $1,169,035 $473,275  $1,642,310
Operating income (loss) . 60,062 (11,089) 48,973
Assets employed

atyear-end .......... 986,617 751,833 1,738,450
Depreciation and

amortization. . ........ 63,125 51,308 114,433
Capital expenditures . . ... 73,292 65,804 139,096

(1) Intersegment steel sales to the bearing business of
$211,201,000 in 1994, $162,133,000 in 1993 and
$156,525,000 in 1992 are eliminated on consolidation and are
not included in the figures presented.

(2) The 1993 impairment and restructuring charges of
$48,000,000 by industry segments follow (in thousands of
dollars):

Bearing Steel Consolidated
Impairment charges . . . .. $12,250 $4,750 $17,000
Restructuring charges . . . 24,355 6,645 31,000

$36,605  $11,395 $48,000°

There were no significant changes to the program in 1994.

THE WASHINGTON POST COMPANY (DEC)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M. Business Segments

The company operates principally in four areas of the
communications industry: newspaper publishing, tele-
vision broadcasting, magazine publishing and cable
television.

Newspaper operations involve the publicationot news-
papers in the Washington, D.C. area and Everett, Wash-
ington, and newsprint warehousing and recycling
facilities.

Broadcast operations are conducted primarily through
six VHF television stations. All stations are network-affili-
ated, with revenues derived primarily from sales of ad-
vertising time.

Magazine operations consist of the publication of a
weekly news magazine, Newsweek, which has one do-
mestic and three international editions. Revenues from
both newspaper and magazine publishing operations are
derived from advertising and, to a lesser extent, from
circulation.

Cable television operations consist of over 50 cable
systems offering basic cable and pay television services
to more than 498,000 subscribers in 15 midwestern,
western, and southern states. Prior to September 1993,
cable television operations also included services
provided in the United Kingdom. The principal source of
revenues is monthly subscription fees charged for
services.

Other Businesses include the operations of a database
publishing company, a regional sports cable system, a
wireless telephone system, educational centers engaged
in preparing students for admission tests and licensing
examinations (including the preparation and publishing
of training materials), and a producer and publisher of
CD-ROM titles.

Income from operations is the excess of operating
revenues over operating expenses including corporate
expenses, which are allocated to operations of the seg-
ments. In computing income from operations by seg-
ment, the effects of equity in earnings of affiliates,
interest income, interest expense, other income and ex-
pense items, and income taxes are not included.

Identifiable assets by segment are those assets used
in the company’s operations in each business segment.
Investments in affiliates are discussed in Note D. Corpo-
rate assets are principally cash and cash equivalents
and investments in marketable debt securities.
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Newspaper Magazine Cable Other
(in Thousands) Publishing  Broadcasting Publishing Television Businesses  Consolidated
1994
Operating revenues. . ............... $717,280 $260,252 $337,602 $182,140 $116,704 $1,613,978
Income from operations............. $134,415 $107,656 $14,159 $41,464 $(22,819) $274,875
Equity in earnings of affiliates. ........ 7,325
Interestexpense . .................. (5,590)
Otherincome, net.................. 10,312
Income before income taxes.......... $286,922
Identifiable assets.................. $349,194 $425,789 $187,052 $326,645 $100,028 $1,388,708
Investments in affiliates ............. 170,754
Corporateassets. .................. __ 137,408
Totalassets..................... $1,696,868
Depreciation and amortization
of property, plant, and equipment . . .. $18,086 $8,123 $5,075 $26,912 $3,754 $61,950
Amortization of goodwill
and other intangibles.............. $800 $7,725 $12,149 $4,719 $25,393
Capital expenditures .. .............. $20,681 $8,881 $23,028 $18,860 $3,192 $74,642
1993
Operating revenues. ................ $692,287 $177.415 $332,506 $185,721 $110,262 $1,498,191
Income (loss) from operations. ... .... $123,151 $65,306 $18,011 $41,618 $(9,106) $238,980
Equity in losses of affiliates. .......... (1,994)
Interestexpense . .................. (4,983)
Otherincome,net.................. 31,464
Income before income taxes. ......... $263,467
Identifiable assets.................. $329,799 $144,622 $152,462 $416,589 $71,059 $1,114,531
Investments in affiliates ............. 155,251
Corporateassets................... 352,722
Totalassets . ..................t. $1,622,504
Depreciation and amortization of
property, plant, and equipment . . .. .. $16,768 $5,276 $6,266 $28,052 $3,181 $59,543
Amortization of goodwill
and other intangibles. ............. $800 $670 $12,247 $2,499 $16,216
Capital expenditures . . .............. $24,422 $6,599 $4,472 $38,802 $4,844 $79,139
1992
Operating revenues. . ............... $677,645 $162,154 $347,067 $174,098 $89,903 $1,450,867
Income (loss) from operations. ... .... $120,794 $54,568 $23,882 $38,967 $(6,099) $232,112
Equity in losses of affiliates. .......... (11,730)
Interestexpense . .................. (6,385)
Otherincome,net.................. 10,199
Income before income taxes.......... $224,196
Identifiableassets.................. $315,522 $143,357 $141,008 $397,504 $77,365 $1,074,756
Investments in affiliates ............. 162,410
Corporateassets................... 330,955
Totalassets..................... $1,568,121
Depreciation and amortization of S
property, plant, and equipment . .. . .. $16,724 $6,289 $6,252 $26,994 $2,963 $59,222
Amortization of goodwill
and other intangibles. . ............ $745 $664 $11,574 $2,495 $15,478
Capital expenditures . ............... $13,653 $2,844 $2,732 $36,900 $2,760 $58,889
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WORTHINGTON INDUSTRIES, INC. (MAY)
Industry Segment Data
In thousands May 31 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990
Net Sales
" Processed steel products ........... $920,199 $767,682 $668,578 $611,589 $650,715
Customproducts. ................. 249,459 241,916 217,731 186,105 166,540
Castproducts .................... 115,476 103,644 85,037 73,834 97,084
$1,285,134  $1,113,242 $971,346 $871,528 $914,339
Operating Income
Processed steel products ........... $98,062 $79,187 $70,317 $63,840 $72,182
Custom products. . ................ 15,334 20,360 13,948 6,789 9,027
Castproducts .................... 6,016 6,544 4,092 79 9,076
119,412 106,091 88,357 71,420 90,285
Miscellaneous income. ............. 389 598 1,289 1,039 1,200
Interestexpense .................. (3,017) (3,421) (3,986) (4,807) (4,245)
Equity in net income of ‘
unconsolidated affiliates. ... ....... 18,851 4,587 5,440 7,416 1,655
$135,635 $107,855 $91,100 $75,068 $88,895
Identifiable Assets
Processed steel products ........... $471,458 $428,891 $410,051 $365,337 $333,787
Custom products. . ................ 138,015 117,856 105,483 94,909 91,613
Castproducts .................... 75,733 69,843 62,350 65,311 59,560
Corporate. . ...................... 61,406 59,674 41,273 36,617 74,008
746,612 676,264 619,157 562,174 558,968
Investment in unconsolidated
affiiates . ...................... 51,961 17,945 8,803 8,051 2,929
$798,573 $694,209 $627,960 $570,225 $561,897
Depreciation Expense
Processed steel products ........... $19,075 $17,745 $15,927 $13,230 $10,983
Custom products. . ................ 7,047 5,598 5,233 4,990 4,246
Castproducts .................... 4,095 3,900 3,879 3,943 3,932
Corporate. ....................... 2,168 1,961 1,848 1,680 1,629
$32,385 $29,204 $26,887 $23,843 $20,790
Capital Expenditures
Processed steel products ........... $14,693 $9,876 $28,081 $45,554 $33,561
Customproducts. . ................ 19,086 12,640 9,345 8,527 12,653
Castproducts .................... 6,787 5,283 1,631 6,098 7,166
Corporate. . ...................... 5,988 1,341 6,063 3,140 1,178
$46,554 $29,140 $45,120 $63,319 $54,558

( ) Indicates deduction

Corporate expenses are allocated on a consistent basis among industry segments over the five-year period. Earnings are before income taxes
and cumulative effect of accounting changes. “Capital expenditures” are net of normal disposals and exclude amounts in connection with ac-

quisitions and divestitures.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note H-Industry Segment Data

Industry segment descriptions on the inside front cover,
Company locations on page 34, and segment data on
page 25 of the annual report are an integral part of these
financial statements.

Sales for processed steel products and custom prod-
ucts include $161,602,000 in 1994, $130,483,000 in
1993 and $125,723,000 in 1992 to a major automobile
manufacturer purchasing through decentralized divisions
and subsidiaries in different geographical areas.

Geographic Areas
ABBOTT LABORATORIES (DEC)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 11-Industry Segment and Geographic Area
Information (dollars in millions)

The Company’s principal business is the discovery, de-
velopment, manufacture, and sale of a broad and diversi-
fied line of health care products and services. These
products have been classified into the following industry
segments:

Pharmaceutical and nutritional products—Included are
a broad line of adult and pediatric pharmaceuticals and
nutritionals, which are sold primarily on the prescription
or recommendation of physicians or other health care
professionals; consumer products; agricultural and
chemical products; and bulk pharmaceuticals.

Hospital and laboratory products—included are diag-
nostic systems for blood banks, hospitals, commercial
laboratories and alternate-care testing sites; intravenous
and irrigation fluids and related administration equip-
ment; drugs and drug delivery systems; anesthetics; criti-
cal care products; and other medical specialty products
for hospitals and alternate-care sites.

in the following tables, net sales by industry segment
and geographic area include both sales to customers, as
reported in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings, and
inter-area sales (for geographic areas) at sales prices
which approximate market. Operating profit excludes
corporate expenses.

Industry Segments (a) 1994 1993 1992
Net Sales

Pharmaceutical and nutritional $4,951 $4,389  $4,025
Hospital and laboratory 4,205 4,019 3,827
Total $9,156 $8,408  $7,852
Oberating Profit

Pharmaceutical and nutritional (b)  $1,385 $1,211 $879
Hospital and laboratory (c) 818 794 703
Operating Profit 2,203 2,005 1,582
Corporate expenses, net (d) 23 46 104
Interest (income) expense, net 13 16 11
Gain on sale of investment — — (272)
Earnings Before Taxes $2,167  $1,943  $1,739
Identifiable Assets

Pharmaceutical and nutritional $3,415 $3,046  $2,616
Hospital and laboratory 3,596 3,296 3,108
General corporate (e) 1,513 1,347 1,217
Total $8,524 $7689  $6,941
Capital Expenditures

Pharmaceutical and nutritional $478 $475 $502
Hospital and laboratory 447 474 500
General corporate 4 4 5
Total $929 $953  $1,007
Depreciation and Amortization

Pharmaceutical and nutritional $213 $189 $161
Hospital and laboratory 295 292 264
General corporate 3 3 3
Total $511 $484 $428
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Geographic Areas (a) 1994 1993 1992
Net Sales
United States:
Domestic and export customers $5,758  $5,347  $4,918
Inter-area 1,143 932 930
Total United States 6,901 6,279 5,848
Latin America 490 413 339
Europe, Mideast and Africa 1,662 1,554 1,649
Pacific, Far East and Canada 1,246 1,094 946
Eliminations (1,143) (932) (930)
Total $9,156 $8,408  $7,852
Operating Profit (b) and (c) :
United States $1,558  $1,390  $1,114
Latin America 131 106 70
Europe, Mideast and Africa 352 301 260
Pacific, Far East and Canada 182 189 143
Eliminations (20) 19 (5)
Total $2,203 $2,005  $1,582
Identifiable Assets, Excluding

General Corporate Assets (c)
United States $4,809  $4492  $4,017
Latin America 274 228 188
Europe, Mideast and Africa 1,298 1,096 1,089
Pacific, Far East and Canada 827 703 627
Eliminations (197) a7 (197)
Total $7,011 $6,342  $5,724

@)

(b)

(c)
(d)

()

Net sales and operating profit were not significantly impacted
by the fluctuations in the U.S. dollar in 1994. In 1993, net sales
and operating profit were unfavorably affected by the relatively
stronger U.S. dollar, while 1992 was favorably affected by the
relatively weaker U.S. dollar.

The 1992 operating profit was unfavorably impacted by the
pretax charge of $215 for costs associated with the voluntary
withdrawal of temafloxacin from the worldwide market. The
1993 operating profit was favorably impacted by the $70 pretax
credit resulting from resolution of various contingencies re-
lated to the withdrawal. The operating profit for 1993 was un-
favorably impacted by the $104 pretax charge reflecting the
settlement of certain claims and legal proceedings in connec-
tion with the sale and marketing of infant formula products. In
1994, a similar pretax amount was charged against earnings
for other pending and settled litigation.

The 1993 operating profit was favorably impacted by the gain
on the sale of the peritoneal dialysis product line.

Corporate expenses not allocated to segments include results
from joint ventures, minority interest expenses, net foreign ex-
change losses, and other general corporate income and ex-
pense. Net foreign exchange losses were $30.8 in 1994, $41.3
in 1993, and $93.2 in 1992.

General corporate assets are principally prepaid income taxes,
cash and cash equivalent, investment securities, and invest-
ments in joint ventures.
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CHAMPION INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION (DEC)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 14 (In Part): Business Segments
Information about the company’s operations in different geographic areas for the three years ended December 31, 1994

is as follows:

Corporate Consolidated

(In Thousands of Dollars) u.s. Canada Brazil and Other Total
Net Sales to Unaffiliated Customers:

1994, . . $4,370,317 $694,104 $253,771 $ — $5,318,192
1993, ... 4,185,388 610,947 272,498 — 5,068,833
1992, e 4,114,609 532,623 279,239 —_ 4,926,471
Income from Operations:

1994, ... $125,145 $133,930 $54,097 $(47,172) $266,000
1993............ e (18,063) 53,674 78,604 (47,823) 66,392
1992, . (11,418) 37,778 91,221 (44,210) 73,371
Identifiable Assets:

1994, e $7,254,363 $747,225 $546,464 $415,576 $8,963,628
1993, .. 7,454,454 744,631 513,099 430,585 9,142,769
1992, . 7,588,478 718,695 593,261 480,998 9,381,432
Capital Expenditures:

1994, ... $258,899 $14,029 $48,796 $7,148 $328,872
1993, .. 486,074 65,035 49,083 5,588 605,780
1992, . 638,392 16,974 55,422 7,501 718,289
Depreciation Expense and

Cost of Timber Harvested:

1994, . $387,483 $32,338 $25,153 $13,723 $458,697
1993, .. 376,456 32,513 21,838 12,627 443 434
1992, 342,769 33,366 20,437 13,928 410,500

For the year ended December 31, 1994, net export
sales to foreign countries totaled $544 million. As of De-
cember 31, 1994, net assets located outside of the
United States included in the consolidated financial
statements were approximately $849 million. Of this
amount, $492 million, which includes $51 million of cash
and cash equivalents, is owned by the company’s Brazil-
ian subsidiary.
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SNAP-ON INCORPORATED (DEC)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 13 Reporting Segments

The Corporation operates predominantly in a single in-
dustry as a manufacturer and distributor of tools and
other products for the professional mechanic. The Cor-
poration is a multinational corporation with operations in
many countries including the United States, Australia,
Belgium, Brazil, Canada, France, Germany, Japan, Mex-
ico, Puerto Rico, the Netherlands, New Zealand, Taiwan
and the United Kingdom. Transfers between geographic
areas primarily represent inter-company export sales of
U.S.-produced goods and are accounted for based on
established sales prices between the related companies.
In computing earnings from operations for foreign sub-
sidiaries, no allocations of general corporate expenses,
interest or income taxes have been made.

Identifiable assets of European and other foreign sub-
sidiaries are those assets related to the operations of
those subsidiaries. United States assets consist of all
other operating assets of the Corporation.

25

Other Foreign
($000) United States Europe Subsidiaries  Eliminations Consolidated
égzi to unaffiliated customers.................. $862,189 $191,648 $140,459 — $1,194,296
Transfers between geographicareas ............. 149,986 2,670 9,793 (162,449) —
Totalrevenue ............ ... i 1,012,175 194,318 150,252 (162,449) 1,194,296
Earnings from operations...................... 126,834 21,444 14,217 (4,600) 157,895
Identifiable assets............................ . $1,015,208 $137,340 $108,083 $(25,726) $1,234,905
182%1 to unaffifiated customers. ................. $807,469 $198,941 $125,600 — $1,132,010
Transfers between geographicareas ............. 105,846 2,595 10,486 (118,927) —
Totalrevenue ................. ..., 913,315 201,536 136,086 (118,927) 1,132,010
Earnings from operations...................... 112,324 22,023 14,560 (1,974) 146,933
Identifiableassets............................ $1,007,269 $140,735 $96,655 $(25,726) $1,218,933
;gﬁszs to unaffiliated customers. ................. $770,766 $111,598 $101,436 — $983,800
Transfers between geographicareas ............. 73,062 2,185 7,324 (82,571) —
Totalrevenue .................coiiiininn.. 843,828 113,783 108,760 (82,571) 983,800
Earnings from operations...................... 105,874 2,157 8,133 (489) 115,675
Identifiableassets.................... ... ... $978,902 $120,295 $98,737 $(25,521) $1,172,413
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TRW INC. (DEC)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Geographic Segments

TRW'’s operations are located primarily in the United
States and Europe. Interarea sales are not significant to
the total revenue of any geographic area. Restructuring
gains(losses) included in operating profit were: $4 million
in 1993 and $45 million in 1992 for United States opera-
tions; $(7) million in 1993 and $23 million in 1992 for
Europe; and $(2) million in 1993 and $(28) million in
1992 for Other.

In millions 1994 1993 1992
Sales
United States $6,290 $5,643 $5,676
Europe 1,965 1,522 1,917
Other 832 783 - 718
$9,087 $7,948  $8,311
Operating profit
United States $528 $461 $382
Europe 143 50 176
Other 76 71 43
$747 $582 $601
Identifiable assets
United States $3,444 $3,536  $3,540
Europe 1,289 1,047 1,113
Other 531 461 459
Identifiable assets 5,264 5,044 5112
Eliminations (78) (81) (76)
Company Staff assets 380 317 353
Investments in affiliates 70 56 69
Total assets $5,636 $5336  $5,458

Major Customefs

CERIDIAN CORPORATION (DEC)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Dollars in millions, except per share data)

Note G (In Part): Segment Data

Major Customers

Revenue in 1994, 1993 and 1992, respectively, included
sales under prime contracts or subcontracts to the U.S.
government of $226, $232, and $239 and the Canadian
government of $173, $137 and $95, substantially all of
which are reported in the Defense Electronics segment.
Of the sales to the Canadian government, $154 in 1994,
$105 in 1993 and $69 in 1992 were from the Iris
contract.

MAXUS ENERGY CORPORATION (DEC)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 6—-Geographic Data

The Company is engaged primarily in the exploration for
and the production and sale of crude oil and natural gas.

Sales, operating profit and identifiable assets by geo-
graphic area were as follows:

Sales and Operating Revenues
1994 1993 1992

United States $276.9 $380.7  $294.2
Indonesia 3812  406.0 4242
South America 24.0
Sales and operating revenues $682.1 $786.7 $718.4
Operating Profit
1994 1993 1992
United States $48.0 $39.3 $52.7
Indonesia 138.5 169.1 188.4
South America (2.6) (13.0) (11.4)
Other Foreign (11.6) (20.4) (31.8)
172.3 175.0 197.9
Equity earnings 52 10.2 8.7

General corporate income

and (expenses) (117.6) (50.5) 57.0

Interest and debt expenses (96.7) (88.4) (86.9)
Restructuring 101.0
Operating profit $642  $46.3  $176.7
Identifiable Assets
1994 1993 1992
United States v $327.0  $521.1  $5356
Indonesia 647.5 665.5 597.2
South America 394.2 218.9 74.8
Other Foreign 114 3.9 6.1
1,290.1 1,409.4 12137
Corporate assets 416.6 489.7 521.9
Investments in
Associated Companies 88.3 76.0
identifiable assets $1,706.7 $1,9874 $1,811.6

Net foreign assets were $701.4 million at December

31, 1994, $673.5 million at December 31, 1993 and

$507.9 million at December 31, 1992.

Results of foreign operations, after applicable local
taxes, amounted to net income of $63.9 million in 1994,
$77.8 million in 1993 and $78.1 million in 1992,

Sales to three customers in 1994, 1993 and 1992 each
represented 10% or more of consolidated sales:

1994 1993 1992

Diamond Shamrock, Inc.
Mitsubishi Corporation
Indonesian Government

$13.2 $38.4 $79.9
66.5 83.3 95.0
145.8 148.0 141.1
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Export Sales
JOSLYN CORPORATION (DEC)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 12-Segment Of Business Reporting:

The operations of the corporation are divided into the
following business segments for financial reporting
purposes:

Electrical Switches and Controls: Includes power qual-
ity protection and control products and power switches
and related controls. Electronic protection equipment,
high-voltage vacuum products, sulfur hexafluoride
switches and switchgear are designed and produced pri-
marily for use by the electric utility, telecommunications
and industrial markets. These products include electronic
transient suppression devices, telecommunications test
instrumentation, monitor systems and control equipment,
electric switching and interrupting systems, vacuum
capacitors, relays, starters, contactors, fire pump
controllers, dehydration products and electrical connec-
tor accessories.

Utility Line Products: Includes power and communi
cation line protection and support products. Construction
and maintenance materials and electric power protection
equipment are designed and produced principally for

electric power distribution and for overhead telephone
communication lines. These products are manufactured
and assembled from metal, polymers, fiberglass, engi-
neered materials and porcelain and include hardware,
earth anchors, power surge arresters, cable accessories,
electrical terminating devices and other products. In ad-
dition, the corporation sells complementary goods pro-
duced by other manufacturers.

Intersegment sales are not material. Foreign opera-
tions of the corporation, which are not material, are lo-
cated in Canada and primarily serve markets in that
country. No single customer accounts for 10% or more of
the corporation’s sales. General corporate assets are
principally cash and cash equivalents, land and deferred
tax and other assets.

Financial information by business segments is as
follows:

Net Income from
Customer Business Identifiable Capital
(in thousands) Sales Segments Assets  Depreciation Expenditures
1994
Electrical Switches and Controls. ................ $132,776 $14,879 $69,226 $3,278 $2,200
Utility Line Products . . . ....................... 83,401 5,467 31,365 1,905 1,112
General Corporate. ........................... 76,913 130 122
Consolidated. ............................... $216,177 $20,346 $177,504 $5,313 $3,434
1993
Electrical Switches and Controls. ................ $142,677 $22,781 $74,649 $3,134 $2,092
Utility Line Products. . ........................ 75,030 5,012 31,391 1,912 1,305
General Corporate. ........................... ‘ 56,242 132 31
Consolidated. . .............................. $217,707 $27,793 $162,282 $5,178 $3,428
1992
Electrical Switches and Gontrols................. $136,217 $21,276 $71,648 $2,780 $1,804
Utility Line Products . . ........................ 81,672 6,679 33,614 2,025 898
General Corporate. . .......................... 52,897 154 40
Consolidated. ............................... $217,889 $27,955 $158,159 $4,959 $2,742
Export sales from the corporation’s United States operations to unaffiliated customers were as follows:
(in thousands)
1994 1993 1992
T $10,173 $11,249 $13,584
BUIODE - .o 8,391 9,333 7,047
Western Hemisphere . ........... ... i 11,310 9,635 8,708
L0137 1,645 2,805 3,148
TOtal . .. $31,519 $33,022 $32,487
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THE TORO COMPANY (JUL)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. Segment Data

The company classifies its operations into one industry
segment, yard maintenance equipment. International
sales were $130,053,000, $129,422,000 and
$132,154,000 for 1994, 1993 and 1992, respectively. Of
these amounts export sales were $109,344,000,
$111,263,000 and $109,076,000 for 1994, 1993 and
1992, respectively. Export sales by geographic area are
as follows: ‘

(Dollars in thousands)

Years ended July 31 1994 1993 1992
Europe $48976 $53,992 $52,867
Canada 28,039 26,573 25,326
Pacific Rim 27,535 26,208 26,343
Other 4,794 4,490 4,540

Total export sales $109,344 $111,263 $109,076

Sales to any particular customer were not significant.

NATURAL BUSINESS YEAR

For years, the accounting and legal professions, printers,
the Securities and Exchange Commission, and others in-
terested in various aspects of the year-end bottleneck
have advocated that companies adopt a natural business
year. A natural business year is the period of 12 con-
secutive months which ends when the business activities
of an entity have reached the lowest point in their annual
cycle. In many instances, the natural business year of a
company ends December 31.

Table 1-4 summarizes, by the month in which a fiscal
year ends, the fiscal year endings of the survey compa-
nies. For tabulation purposes, if a fiscal year ended in
the first week of a rhonth, the fiscal year was considered
to have ended in the preceding month.

For 1994, 141 survey companies were on a 52-53
week fiscal year.

During 1994, six companies changed the date of their
fiscal year-end. Examples of such changes and
examples of fiscal year definitions follow.

TABLE 1-4: MONTH OF FISCAL YEAR END

1994 1993 1992 1991
January........... 23 23 21 21
February .......... 12 1 14 14
March ............ 15 16 15 12
April............. .. 8 7 7 7
May.............. 16 16 16 16
June ............. 59 62 60 62
July ...l 14 15 15 16
August............ 15 16 18 18
September......... 37 35 33 31
October........... 22 22 22 21
November ......... 17 17 18 18

Subtotal........ 238 240 239 236
December ......... 362 360 361 364
Total Companies. . 600 600 600 600

Change in Date of Fiscal Year Ending
AVNET, INC.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

July 1,1994  June 30, 1993

Consolidated Statements of Income

Year Ended July 1, 1994 June 30,1993  June 30, 1992

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended July 1, 1994 June 30,1993 . June 30, 1992

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Fiscal Year—Effective in fiscal 1994, the Company
changed its fiscal year to end on the Friday closest to
June 30th. The impact on the current year of one addi-
tional day of operations was not material.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Avnet, Inc.
Great Neck, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidated bal-
ance sheets of Avnet, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of July 1,
1994 and June 30, 1993, and the related consolidated
statements of income, shareholders’ equity and cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended July
1, 1994. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audits.
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We conducted our audits in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examin-
ing, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Avnet, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of July 1,
1994 and June 30, 1993, and the results of their opera-
tions and their cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended July 1, 1994 in conformity with gener-
ally accepted accounting principles.

BERGEN BRUNSWIG CORPORATION

Consolidated Balance Sheets

September 30, August 31,
1994 1993
Statements of Consolidated Earnings
and Retained Earnings
September 30, August 31, August 31,
Years Ended: 1994 1993 1992

Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows

September 30, August 31, August 31,
Years Ended: 1994 1993 1992

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (In Part): Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies
Effective October 1, 1993, the Company changed its fis-
cal year from a twelve-month period ending August 31 to
a twelve-month period ending September 30. The State-
ments of Consolidated Earnings and Retained Earnings
and Cash Flows are presented for the twelve months
ended September 30, 1994, exclusive of September
1993 results, and for the twelve-month periods ended
August 31, 1993 and 1992.

The Statement of Consolidated Earnings for the month
of September 1993 is as follows:

Dollars in thousands,
except for per share amounts
Net sales and other revenues $ 598,147
Costs and expenses:
Cost of sales 566,796
Distribution, selling, general and 27,175
administrative expenses
Total costs and expenses 593,971
Operating earnings 4,176
Net interest expense 1,541
Earnings before taxes on income 2,635
Taxes on income 1,140
Earnings before cumulative effect of a change in 1,495
accounting principle
Cumulative effect on prior years (as of
September 1, 1993) of a change in method of
accounting for income taxes (8,713)
Net loss $ (7,218)
Earnings (loss) per common and common —_—
equivalent share:
Earnings before cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle $ .04
Cumulative effect on prior years (as of
September 1, 1993) of a change in method of
accounting for income taxes (24
Net loss per share $ (.20)
Weighted average number of common and —_—
common equivalent shares 36,496,019

During the month of September 1993, net cash and
cash equivalents of $27.1 million and $6.2 million was
provided by operations and financing activities, respec-
tively, and net cash and cash equivalents of $2.5 million
was used for investing activities. The resulting $30.8 mil-
lion net increase in cash and cash equivalents during the
period increased the $55.0 million of cash and cash
equivalents at September 1, 1993 to $85.8 million at
September 30, 1993.

Certain reclassifications have been made in the con-
solidated financial statements and notes to conform to
fiscal 1994 presentations.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Directors and Shareowners of, Bergen Brunswig
Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated bal-
ance sheets of Bergen Brunswig Corporation and sub-
sidiaries as of September 30, 1994 and August 31, 1993
and the related statements of consolidated earnings and
retained earnings and cash flows for the year ended
September 30, 1994 and the years ended August 31,
1993 and 1992. These consolidated financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.
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We conducted our audits in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examin-
ing, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Bergen Brunswig Corporation
and subsidiaries of September 30, 1994 and August 31,
1993, and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for the year ended September 30, 1994 and the
years ended August 31, 1993 and 1992, in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 7 of Notes to Consolidated Fi-
nancial Statements, the Company changed its method of
accounting for income taxes in September 1993.

LIZ CLAIBORNE, INC.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,1994  December 25, 1993

Consolidated Statements of Income

Fiscal Years Ended

(53 weeks) (52 weeks) (52 weeks)
December 31, December 25, December 26,
1994 1993 1992

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Fiscal Years Ended

(53 weeks) (52 weeks) (52 weeks)
December 31, December 25, December 26,
1994 1993 1992

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (In Part): Significant Accounting Policies

Fiscal year. In 1994, the Company changed its fiscal
year to the Saturday closest to December 31 from the
last Saturday in December. This change had no effect on
the 1994 year end date. The 1994 fiscal year reflects a
53-week period, while the 1993 and 1992 fiscal years
each reflect a 52-week period.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

Liz Claiborne, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated bal-
ance sheets of Liz Claiborne, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 1994 and December 25, 1993, and the re-
lated consolidated statements of income, stockholders’
equity and cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in
the period ended December 31, 1994. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s man-
agement. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with gener-
ally accepted auditing standards. Those standards re-
quire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial state-
ments are free of material misstatement. An audit in-
cludes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting princi-
ples used and significant estimates made by manage-
ment, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits pro-
vide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Liz Claiborne, Inc. and subsidiaries as of De-
cember 31, 1994 and December 25, 1993, and the re-
sults of their operations and their cash flows for each of
the three fiscal years in the period ended December 31,
1994 in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles.

As explained in Note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements, effective December 27, 1992, the Company
changed its method of accounting for income taxes.

GUILFORD MILLS, INC.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

October 2, September 26, June 27,
1994 1993 1993

Consolidated Statements of Income

For the Year Ended October 2, 1994, the Transition
Quarter from June 28, 1993 to September 26, 1993, the
Years Ended June 27, 1993 and June 28, 1992

October 2, September 26, June 27, June 28,
1994 1993 1993 1992
(53 Weeks) (13 Weeks) "~ (52 Weeks) (52 Weeks)
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’
Investment

For the Year Ended October 2, 1994, the Transition
Quarter from June 28, 1993 to September 26, 1993, the
Years Ended June 27, 1993 and June 28, 1992

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended October 2, 1994, the Transition
Quarter from June 28, 1993.to0 September 26, 1993, the
Years Ended June 27, 1993 and June 28, 1992

(In thousands)
October 2, September 26, June 27, June 28,
1994 1993 1993 1992
(53 Weeks) (13 Weeks) (52 Weeks) (52 Weeks)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands except share data)

1 (In Part): Summary of Accounting Policies

Change in Fiscal Year — On August 19, 1993, the Board
of Directors approved a change in the Company’s year
for financial reporting purposes from a fiscal year ending
on the Sunday nearest to June 30 to the Sunday nearest
to September 30. The change in the fiscal year reflects a
natural movement of the manufacturing cycle closer to
the needs and desires of the Company’s customers. The
consolidated financial statements include presentation of
the transition quarter beginning on June 28, 1993 and
ending on September 26, 1993. Proforma data for the
quarters ended September 26, 1993 and September 27,
1992 consists of the following:

1993 1992
(unaudited)
Net sales $141,450 $151,722
Gross profit 22,902 28,623
Operating Income 214 12,637
Income tax provision (benefit) (1,400) 3,700
Income (loss) before cumulative effect
of change in accounting principle (1,087) 6,818
Cumulative effect on prior years of
change in accounting principle 3,100 —
Net income 2,013 6,818
Income (loss) per share before
cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle:
Primary (0.08) 50
Fully Diluted (0.08) 47
Net Income Per Share:
Primary 15 .50

Fully Diluted 15 47

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of
Guilford Mills, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated bal-
ance sheets of Guilford Mills, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
October 2, 1994, September 26, 1993 and June 27,
1993, and the related consolidated statements of in-
come, stockholders’ investment and cash flows for the
year ended October 2, 1994, the transition quarter from
June 28, 1993 to September 26, 1993 and the years
ended June 27, 1993 and June 28, 1992. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s man-
agement. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examin-
ing, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Guilford Mills, Inc. and subsidiaries as of Oc-
tober 2, 1994, September 26, 1993 and June 27, 1993,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows
for the year ended October 2, 1994, the transition quar-
ter from June 28, 1993 to September 26, 1993 and the
years ended June 27, 1993 and June 28, 1992 in con-
formity with generally accepted accounting principles.

As explained in Note 7 to the financial statements, ef-
fective June 28, 1993, the Company changed its method
of accounting for income taxes as required by Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109.

Definition of Fiscal Year
AMERICAN STORES COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant Accounting Policies (In Part)

Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of the Company ends on the Saturday
nearest to January 31. All references herein to “1994”
“1993” and “1992” represent the 52-week fiscal years
ended January 28, 1995, January 29, 1994 and January
30, 1998, respectively.
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CAMPBELL SOUP COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Fiscal Year — The company’s fiscal year ends on the
Sunday nearest July 31. There were 52 weeks in fiscal
1994 and fiscal 1993 and 53 weeks in fiscal 1992.

CONCORD FABRICS INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
6. The Company operates on a 52-53 week year ending
on the Sunday closest to August 31; each of the three
years in the period ended August 28, 1994 comprised
fifty-two weeks.

ADOLPH COORS COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (In Part): Summary of Accounting Policies

Fiscal year: The fiscal year of the Company is a 52- or
53-week period ending on the last Sunday in December.
Fiscal years for the financial statements included herein
ended December 25, 1994; December 26, 1993; and De-
cember 27, 1992, and were 52-week periods.

FLUKE CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (In Part): Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies

Accounting Period. Fluke Corporation utilizes a 52/53-
week fiscal year ending on the last Friday in April. In
1993, the Company changed its fiscal year-end to the
last Friday in April. Fiscal 1993 was a seven-month tran-
sition period ending on April 30, 1993. Prior to fiscal
1993, the Company utilized a 52/53-week fiscal year
ending on the last Friday in September. The accompany-
ing financial statements include audited consolidated fi-
nancial statements for the seven-month transition period
ended April 30, 1993.

MUNSINGWEAR, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Fiscal Year

The Company'’s fiscal year ends on the first Saturday fol-
lowing December 31. The fiscal year ended January 7,
1995 was a 53-week year, while the fiscal years ended
January 1, 1994 and January 2, 1993 each had 52
weeks.

COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rule 14a-3 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
requires that annual reports to stockholders should in-
clude comparative balance sheets, and statements of
income and of cash flows for each of the 3 most recent
fiscal years. All of the survey companies are registered
with the Securities and Exchange Commission and
conformed to the aforementioned requirements of Rule
14a-3.

Usually the income statement is the first financial
statement presented and is followed by either a balance
sheet (317 companies) or a statement showing changes
only in retained earnings (40 companies). 199 compa-
nies presented the balance sheet as the first financial
statement followed by an income statement.

Prior to 1986, the financial statements, with rare ex-
ception, were presented on consecutive pages. Begin-
ning in 1986 certain survey companies did not present
their financial statements on consecutive pages but inter-
spersed the Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations among
the financial statements by having comments discussing
the content of a financial statement follow the presenta-
tion of a financial statement. Such interspersed material
was not covered by an auditor’s report and was not pre-
sented in lieu of notes. In 1994, 22 survey companies did
not present their financial statements on consecutive
pages.

ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS

Table 1-5 shows that most of the survey companies state
financial statement amounts in either thousands or mil-
lions of dollars.

TABLE 1-5: ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS
1994 1993 1992 1991

Tonearestdollar................ 43 48 45 51
To nearest thousand dollars:
Omitting 000 ................. 352 349 362 357
Presenting 000................ 22 27 28 31
To nearest million dollars ......... 183 176 165 161

Total Companies . ... ......... 600 600 600 600
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Securities and Exchange Commission Regulations S-X
and S-K, and SAS No. 32 state the need for adequate
disclosure in financial statements. Normally the financial
statements alone cannot present all information neces-
sary for adequate disclosure without considering ap-
pended notes which disclose information of the sort
listed below:

Changes in accounting principles.
Any material retroactive adjustments.
Long-term lease agreements.

Assets subject to lien.

Preferred stock data.

Pension and retirement plans.

Restrictions on the availability of retained earnings for
cash dividend purposes.

Contingencies and commitments.
Depreciation and depletion policies.
Stock option or stock purchase plans.
Consolidation policies.

Computation of earnings per share.
Subsequent events.

Quarterly data.

Segment information.

Financial instruments.

Table 1-6 summarizes the manner in which financial
statements refer to notes. Notes on specific topics are
illustrated in this publication in the sections dealing with
such topics.

TABLE 1-6: NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1994 1993 1992 1991

General referenceonly ........... 416 384 374 374
General and direct references. . . . .. 182 210 221 222
Direct reference only. ............ 1 3 2 1
No referencetonotes............ 1 3 3 3

Total Companies........... 600 600 600 600

DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

APB Opinion No. 22 requires that the significant ac-
counting policies of an entity be presented as an integral
part of the financial statements of the entity. Opinion No.
22 sets forth guidelines as to the content and format of
disclosures of accounting policies.

Table 1-7 shows the nature of information frequently
disclosed in summaries of accounting policies and the
number of survey companies disclosing such informa-
tion. Examples of summaries of accounting policies
follow.

TABLE 1-7: DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Number of Companies
1994 1993 1992 1991

Consolidation policy. . ........... 591 586 584 584
Depreciation methods . .......... 582 581 577 580
Inventory pricing . .............. 556 559 553 557
Property...................... 496 502 490 489
Cash equivalents ............... 483 474 469 464
Earnings per share calculation. . . . . 460 454 445 434
Interperiod tax allocation......... 410 431 438 458
Amortization of intangibles ....... 380 385 382 376
Translation of foreign currency .... 320 313 281 267
Financial instruments............ 282 251 176 139
Employee benefits . ............. 181 178 156 157
Fiscalyears ................... 145 150 126 117
Research and development

COStS. ... 153 143 143 142
Environmental costs ............ 111 87 33 —
Capitalization of interest. . ... ... .. 79 78 77 70
Credit risk concentrations . ... .. .. 71 73 63 58

AST RESEARCH INC (JUN)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements in-
clude the accounts of AST Research, Inc. (the “Com-
pany”) and its wholly and majority owned subsidiaries. All
intercompany accounts and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Fiscal Year

The Company operates within a conventional 52/53
week accounting fiscal year. The Company’s fiscal year
ends on the Saturday closest to June 30th, with the ex-
ception of certain foreign subsidiaries which operate on a
June 30th fiscal year end. The fiscal years ended July 2,
1994, July 3, 1993 and June 27, 1992 included 52, 53
and 52 weeks, respectively.
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Business

The company designs, manufactures, markets, services
and supports a broad line of personal computers, includ-
ing desktop, server, and notebook systems marketed un-
der the Advantage!, Ascentia, Bravo, Premmia and Man-
hattan SMP brand names.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents generally consist of cash,
certificates of deposit, time deposits, commercial paper,
money market preferred stocks, short-term government
obligations and other money market instruments. The
Company invests its excess cash in deposits with major
international banks, in government securities and money
market securities of investment grade companies from a
variety of industries and, therefore, bears minimal risk.
These securities have original maturity dates not exceed-
ing three months. Such investments are stated at cost,
which approximates fair value, and are considered cash
equivalents for purposes of reporting cash flows.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, determined on
a first-in first-out basis, or market.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation
and amortization are provided on the straight-line
method over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 40 years
Machinery and equipment 3-5 years
Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years

Leasehold improvements Shorter of 5 years or

remaining term of the lease

Goodwill

Goodwill, representing the excess of the purchase price
over the fair value of the net assets of the acquired enti-
ties, is being amortized on a straight-line basis over the
period of expected benefit of ten years. Total amortiza-
tion of goodwill recorded for fiscal years 1994, 1993 and
1992 was $3.8 million, $.1 million and $.1 million, respec-
tively. The carrying value of goodwill will be reviewed pe-
riodically based on the undiscounted cash flows of the
entity acquired over the remaining amortization period.
Should this review indicate that goodwill will not be re-
coverable, the Company’s carrying value of the goodwill
will be reduced by the estimated shortfall of undis-
counted cash flows.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from product sales at
the time of shipment. The Company has established pro-
grams which, under specified conditions, provide price
protection rights and/or enable its customers to return
product. The effect of these programs is estimated and
current period sales and cost of sales are reduced ac-
cordingly.

Warranty Costs

The Company provides, by a current charge to income,
an amount it estimates will be needed to cover future
warranty obligations for products sold during the year.
The accrued liability for warranty costs is included in the
caption “Other accrued liabilities” in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.

Engineering and Development

Engineering and development costs are expensed as in-
curred. Substantially all engineering and development
expenses are related to developing new products and
designing significant improvements to existing products.

Deferred Grants

During fiscal 1994, the Company secured various grants
from the Industrial Development Authority of the Repub-
lic of Ireland. These grants include employment, training
and capital grants and extend through December 1996.
Employment grants are amortized into income over a pe-
riod of one year. Employee training grants are recog-
nized in income in the period in which the training costs
are incurred by the Company. Grants for the acquisition
of property and equipment are deferred and recognized
in income on the same basis as the related property and
equipment is depreciated. During fiscal 1994, the Com-
pany recorded approximately $5.1 million in grant funds
received or receivable and at July 2, 1994, $4.5 million of
this amount remains as a deferred credit and is included
in “Other accrued liabilities” in the accompanying consoli-
dated balance sheet.

The Company has a ten year contingent liability to re-
pay, in whole or in part, grants received under certain cir-
cumstances pursuant to the Capital and Employment
Grant Agreements which began February 1994. In addi-
tion, the Company has a five year contingent liability un-
der the Employment Grant Agreement from date of first
payment to repay employment grants paid in respect to
any job if such job remains vacant for a period in excess
of six calendar months. At July 2, 1994, the Company
also has a one million Irish pounds (U.S. $1.5 million) ten
year contingent liability related to the purchase of the
manufacturing facility which began in November 1993
and is payable in the event that the Company terminates
operations in Ireland.

Foreign Currency

The financial statements of the Company’s foreign sub-
sidiaries are remeasured into the U.S. dollar functional
currency for consolidation and reporting purposes. Cur-
rent rates of exchange are used to remeasure monetary
assets and liabilities and historical rates of exchange are
used for nonmonetary assets and related elements of ex-
pense. Revenue and other expense elements are re-
measured at rates which approximate the rates in effect
on the transaction dates. Gains and losses resulting from
this remeasurement process are recognized currently in
the consolidated statements of operations.
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The Company utilizes forward exchange contracts and
local currency borrowings to hedge its exposure to ex-
change rate fluctuations in connection with monetary as-
sets and liabilities held in foreign currencies. The
carrying amounts of the forward exchange contracts
equal their fair value and are adjusted at each balance
sheet date for changes in exchange rates. Realized and
unrealized gains and losses on the forward contracts are
recognized currently in income, and any premium or dis-
count is recognized over the life of the contract. The
Company held forward exchange contracts maturing at
various dates through January 1995 with a face value of
approximately $143.0 million at July 2, 1994 and $57.5
million at July 3, 1993. Unrealized losses associated with
these forward contracts aggregating $4.8 million at July
2, 1994 and unrealized gains aggregating $1.1 million at
July 3, 1993 are included in the Company’s consolidated
statements of operations for those periods. For the years
ended July 2, 1994, July 3, 1993 and June 27, 1992, a
net foreign currency transaction loss of $2,097,000, gain
of $555,000 and loss of $1,958,000, respectively, is in-
cluded in the caption “Other expense, net” in the accom-
panying consolidated statements of operations.

Income Taxes

The provision (benefit) for income taxes is computed on
the pretax income (loss) of the consolidated entities lo-
cated within each taxing country based on the current
tax law. Deferred taxes result from the future tax conse-
quences associated with temporary differences between
the amount of assets and liabilities recorded for tax and
financial accounting purposes. Incremental United States
income taxes have not been provided on $198 million of
cumulative undistributed earnings of the Company'’s for-
eign subsidiaries. These earnings, which reflect full pro-
vision for non-U.S. income taxes, are expected to be re-
invested indefinitely in non-U.S. operations or to be
remitted substantially free of additional tax. Accordingly,
no material provision has been made for taxes that might
be payable upon remittance of such earnings nor is it
practicable to determine the amount of this liability.

During fiscal 1993, the Company elected the early
adoption of the asset and liability method of accounting
for income taxes pursuant to Statement of Financial Ac-
counting Standards No. 109 “Accounting for Income
Taxes” (“SFAS 109”). This change had no material effect
on the net loss previously reported in fiscal 1993.

Per Share Information

Primary earnings (loss) per common share have been
computed based upon the weighted average number of
common and common equivalent shares outstanding.
Common equivalent shares result from the assumed ex-
ercise of outstanding stock options that have a dilutive
effect when applying the treasury stock method. The fully
diluted per share calculation assumes, in addition to the
above, (i) that the Company’s Liquid Yield Option Notes
were converted from the date of issuance with earnings
being increased for interest expense, net of taxes, that

would not have been incurred had conversion taken:

place, and (ii) the potential additional dilutive effect of
stock options.

Capital Stock

The Company follows the practice of recording amounts
received upon the exercise of options by crediting com-
mon stock and additional capital. No charges are re-
flected in the consolidated statements of operations as a
result of the grant or exercise of stock options. The Com-
pany realizes an income tax benefit from the exercise or
early disposition of certain stock options. This benefit re-
sults in a decrease in current income taxes payable and
an increase in additional capital.

Reclassification

Certain previously reported amounts have been reclassi-
fied to conform with the current period presentation.

ANALOGIC CORPORATION (JUL)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
Significant accounting policies are as follows:

(a) Principles of consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include
the accounts of the Company, all wholly-owned
and majority-owned subsidiaries. Investments in
companies in which ownership interests range
from 20 to 50 percent and the Company exer-
cises significant influence over operating and fi-
nancial policies are accounted for using the
equity method. Other investments are ac-
counted for using the cost method. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have
been eliminated.

(b) Inventories:

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or
market. Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out
basis.

(c) Property, plant and equipment:

For financial reporting purposes, depreciation
and amortization are provided utilizing the
straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the assets or lease terms, whichever is
shorter, and are computed principally utilizing
accelerated methods for income tax purposes.
Property under capital leases is amortized over
the lease terms.

(d) Revenue recognition:

Revenues are recognized when a product is
shipped or a service is performed.

(e) Capitalized software costs:

The Company capitalizes certain computer
software costs which are amortized utilizing
the straight-line method over the economic
lives of the related products not to exceed
three years. Accumulated amortization ap-
proximated $5,321,000 and $3,719,000 at July
31, 1994 and 1993, respectively.
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Warranty costs:

The Company provides for estimated warranty
costs as products are shipped.

Income taxes:

The Company does not provide U.S. Federal in-
come taxes on undistributed earnings of consoli-

dated foreign subsidiaries as such earnings are

intended to be permanently reinvested in those
operations.

Earnings per share:

Earnings per common and common equivalent
share is based upoon the weighted average of
common and common equivalent shares out-
standing during the year. Primary and fully di-
luted earnings per share are the same. The
number of common and common equivalent
shares utilized in the per share computations
were 12,433,821, 12,301,007 and 12,715,043 in
fiscal 1994, 1993 and 1992, respectively.

Cash and cash equivalents:

The Company considers all short-term deposits
with a maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. Cash equivalents amounted
to approximately $21,135,000 and $15,978,000
at July 31, 1994 and 1993, respectively.

Concentration of credit risk:

The Company grants credit to domestic and for-
eign original equipment manufacturers, distribu-
tors, and end users. The Company places its
cash investments in high credit quality instru-
ments and, by policy, limits the amount of credit
exposure to any one financial institution.

Newly issued accounting standards:

In May, 1993, Statement of Financial Account-
ing Standards No. 115, “Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities”
("SFAS, No. 115"), was issued. The Company
will adopt SFAS No. 115 in the first quarter of
fiscal 1995.

The Company’s marketable securities are ex-
pected to be categorized as available-for-sale
securities, as defined by SFAS No. 115, and will
be reflected on the balance sheet at fair value.
Unrealized holding gains and losses will be re-
flected as a net amount in a separate compo-
nent of stockholders’ equity until realized. The
impact on the Company’s financial position and
results of operations is not expected to be
material.

Basis of presentation:

Certain financial statement items have been
reclassified to conform to the current years
format.

BRIGGS & STRATTON CORPORATION (JUN)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

The significant accounting policies followed by Briggs &
Stratton Corporation and subsidiaries (the Company) in
the preparation of these financial statements, as summa-
rized below, are in conformity with generally accepted
accounting policies.

Fiscal Year: During 1993, the Company changed its
fiscal year from June 30 each year to a 52 or 53 week
year ending on the Sunday nearest the last day of June
in each year. Therefore, the 1994 fiscal year ended on
July 3 (and was 53 weeks long) and the 1993 fiscal year
ended on June 27 (52 weeks). Fiscal year 1992 was un-
der the fiscal calendar which ended on June 30. All refer-
ences to years relate to fiscal years rather than calendar
years.

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial
statements include the accounts of Briggs & Stratton
Corporation and its wholly owned domestic and foreign
subsidiaries after elimination of intercompany accounts
and transactions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: This caption includes
cash and certificates of deposit. The Company considers
all highly liquid investments purchased with a maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Short-Term Investments: This caption represents short
maturity mutual fund investments that can be readily pur-
chased or sold using established markets. These invest-
ments are stated at cost plus accrued income which
equals market value. There were none at the end of fis-
cal 1994.

Inventories: Inventories are stated at cost, which does
not exceed market. The last-in, first-out (LIFO) method
was used for determining the cost of approximately 89%
of total inventories at July 3, 1994, 89% at June 27, 1993
and 90% at June 30, 1992. The cost for the remaining
portion of the inventories was determined using the first-
in, first-out (FIFO) method. If the FIFO inventory valu-
ation method had been used exclusively, inventories
would have been $42,268,000, $40,888,000 and
$39,738,000 higher in the respective years. The LIFO in-
ventory adjustment was determined on an overall basis,
and accordingly, each class of inventory reflects an allo-
cation based on the FIFO amounts.

Plant and Equipment and Depreciation: Plant and
equipment is stated at cost, and depreciation is com-
puted using the straight-line method at rates based upon
the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged
to expense as incurred. Expenditures for major renewals
and betterments, which significantly extend the useful
lives of existing plant and equipment, are capitalized and
depreciated. Upon retirement or disposition of plant and
equipment, the cost and related accumulated deprecia-
tion are removed from the accounts and any resulting
gain or loss is recognized in income.
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Investment Tax Credits: The Company follows the de-
ferral method of accounting for the Federal investment
tax credit. The credit, which was eliminated in 1986, has
been recorded as an addition to accumulated deprecia-
tion and is being amortized over the estimated useful
lives of the related assets via a reduction of depreciation
expense.

The amounts amortized into income in each of the
three years were $830,000 in 1994, $880,000 in 1993
and $1,030,000 in 1992. At the end of fiscal years 1994
and 1993, unamortized deferred investment tax credits
aggregated $3,225,000 and $4,055,000, respectively.

Income Taxes: The Provision for Income Taxes in-
cludes Federal, state and foreign income taxes currently
payable and those deferred or prepaid because of tem-
porary differences between financial statement and tax
bases of assets and liabilities. The Future Income Tax
Benefits represent temporary differences relating to cur-
rent assets and current liabilities and the Deferred In-
come Taxes represent temporary differences relating to
noncurrent assets and liabilities.

Research and Development Costs: Expenditures relat-
ing to the development of new products and processes,
including significant improvements and refinements to
existing products, are expensed as incurred. The
amounts charged against income were $12,520,000 in
1994, $10,411,000 in 1993 and $10,808,000 in 1992.

Accrued Employee Benefits: The Company’s life insur-
ance program includes payment of a death benefit to
beneficiaries of retired employees. The Company ac-
crues for the estimated cost of these benefits over the
estimated working life of the employee. Past service
costs for all retired employees have been fully provided
for and the Company also accrues for the estimated cost
of supplemental retirement and death benefit agree-
ments with executive officers.

Accrued Postretirement Health Care Obligation: During
the 1994 fiscal year, the Company adopted the account-
ing prescribed in FAS 106 (Postretirement Benefits Other
Than Pensions). This change and the amounts associ-
ated with it are more fully described in Note No. 9.

Foreign Currency Translation: Foreign currency bal-
ance sheet accounts are translated into United States
dollars at the rate of exchange in effect at fiscal year
end. Income and expenses are translated at the average
rates of exchange in effect during the year. The related
translation adjustments are made directly to a separate
component of shareholders’ investment.

CHEVRON CORPORATION (DEC)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Chevron Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries
(the company) employ accounting policies that are in ac-
cordance with generally accepted accounting principles
in the United States.

Subsidiary and Affiliated Companies.

The consolidated financial statements include the ac-
counts of subsidiary companies more than 50 percent
owned. Investments in and advances to affiliates in
which the company has a substantial ownership interest
of approximately 20 to 50 percent, or for which the com-
pany participates in policy decisions, are accounted for
by the equity method. Under this accounting, remaining
unamortized cost is increased or decreased by the com-
pany’s share of earnings or losses after dividends.

Oil and Gas Accounting.

The successful efforts method of accounting is used for
oil and gas exploration and production activities.

Derivatives.

Gains and losses on hedges of existing assets or liabili-
ties are included in the carrying amounts of those assets
or liabilities and are ultimately recognized in income as
part of those carrying amounts. Gains and losses related
to qualifying hedges of firm commitments or anticipated
transactions also are deferred and are recognized in in-
come or as adjustments of carrying amounts when the
hedged transaction occurs. Gains and losses on deriva-
tives contracts that do not qualify as hedges are recog-
nized currently in “Other income.”

Short-Term Investments.

All short-term investments are classified as available-
for-sale, and are in highly liquid debt securities. Those in-
vestments that are part of the company’s cash manage-
ment portfolio with original maturities of three months or
less are reported as cash equivalents. The balance of
the short-term investments is reported as marketable
securities.

Inventories.

Crude oil, petroleum products, chemicals and other mer-
chandise are stated at cost, using a Last-In, First-Out
(LIFO) method. In the aggregate, these costs are below
market. Materials and supplies generally are stated at
average cost.

Properties, Plant and Equipment.

All costs for development wells, related plant and equip-
ment (including carbon dioxide and certain other injected
materials used in enhanced recovery grojects), and min-
eral interests in oil and gas properties are capitalized.
Costs of exploratory wells are capitalized pending deter-
mination of whether the wells found. proved reserves.
Costs of wells that are assigned proved reserves remain
capitalized. All other exploratory wells and costs are
expensed.
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Proved oil and gas properties are regularly assessed
for possible impairment on an aggregate worldwide port-
folio basis, applying the informal “ceiling test” of the Se-
curities and Exchange Commission. Under this method,
the possibility of an impairment may exist if the aggre-
gate net book carrying value of these properties, net of
applicable deferred income taxes, exceeds the aggre-
gate undiscounted future cash flows, after tax, from the
properties, as calculated in accordance with accounting
rules for supplemental information on oil and gas produc-
ing activities. In addition, high-cost, long-lead-time oil
and gas projects are individually assessed prior to pro-
duction start-up by comparing the recorded investment in
the project with its fair market or economic value, as ap-
propriate. Economic values are generally based on man-
agement’'s expectations of discounted future after-tax
cash flows from the project at the time of assessment.

Depreciation and depletion (including provisions for fu-
ture abandonment and restoration costs) of all capital-
ized costs of proved oil and gas producing properties,
except mineral interests, are expensed using the unit-of-
production method by individual fields as the proved de-
veloped reserves are produced. Depletion expenses for
capitalized costs of proved mineral interests are recog-
nized using the unit-of-production method by individual
fields as the related proved reserves are produced. Peri-
odic valuation provisions for impairment of capitalized
costs of unproved mineral interests are expenses.

Depreciation and depletion expenses for coal are de-
termined using the unit-of-production method as the
proved reserves are produced. The capitalized costs of
all other plant and equipment are depreciated or amor-
tized over estimated useful lives. In general, the declin-
ing-balance method is used to depreciate plant and
equipment in the United States; the straight-line method
generally is used to depreciate international plant and
equipment and to amortize all capitalized leased assets.

Gains or losses are not recognized for normal retire-
ments of properties, plant and equipment subject to com-
posite group amortization or depreciation. Gains or
losses from abnormal retirements or sales are included
in income.

Expenditures for maintenance, repairs and minor re-
newals to maintain facilities in operating condition are
expensed. Major replacements and renewals are
capitalized.

Environmental Expenditures.

Environmental expenditures that relate to current ongo-
ing operations or to conditions caused by past operations
are expensed. Expenditures that create future benefits or
contribute to future revenue generation are capitalized.
Liabilities related to future remediation costs are re-
corded when environmental assessemnts and/or clean-
ups are probable, and the costs can be reasonably
estimated. Other than for assessments, the timing and
magnitude of these accruals is generally based on the
company’s commitment to a formal plan of action, such
as an approved remediation plan or the sale or disposal
of an asset. For the company’s domestic marketing facili-
ties, the accrual is based on the probability that a future
remediation commitment will be required. For oil and gas
and coal producing properties, a provision is made

through depreciation expense for anticipated abandon-
ment and restoration costs at the end of the property’s
useful life.

For Superfund sites, the company records a liability for
its share of costs when it has been named as a Poten-
tially Responsible Party (PRP) and when an assessment
or cleanup plan has been developed. This liability in-
cludes the company’s own portion of the costs and also
the company’s portion of amounts for other PRP’s when
it is probable that they will not be able to pay their share
of the cleanup obligation.

The company records the gross amount of its liability
based on its best estimate of future costs in current dol-
lars and using currently available technology and apply-
ing current regulations as well as the company’s own
internal environmental policies. Future amounts are not
discounted. Probable recoveries or reimbursements are
recorded as an asset.

Currency Translation.

The U.S. dollar is the functional currency for the com-
pany’s consolidated operations as well as for substan-
tially ali operations of its equity method companies. For
those operations, all gains or losses from currency trans-
actions are included in income currently. The cumulative
translation effects for the few equity affiliates using func-
tional currencies other than the U.S. dollar are included
in the currency translation adjustment in stockholders’
equity.

Taxes.

Income taxes are accrued for retained earnings of inter-
national subsidiaries and corporate joint ventures in-
tended to be remitted. Income taxes are not accrued for
unremitted earnings of international operations that have
been, or are intended to be, reinvested indefinitely.

COCA-COLA ENTERPRISES INC. (DEC)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 — Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation: The consolidated financial state-
ments include the accounts of the Company and its
majority-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany
accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolida-
tion. The Company’s fiscal year ends on December 31.
Certain previously reported amounts have been reclassi-
fied to conform to the 1994 presentation.

Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share: Net income
(loss) per common share is computed by dividing net
income (loss) applicable to common share owners by
the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding:

Cash Equivalents: Cash equivalents include all highly
liquid debt instruments purchased with original maturities
less than three months. The fair value of cash and cash
equivalents approximates their carrying amount.

Concentrations of Credit Risk: The Company sells
products to chain store and other customers and extends
credit based on an evaluation of the customer’s financial
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condition, generally without requiring collateral. Exposure
to losses on receivables is principally. dependent on each
customer’s financial condition. The Company monitors its
exposure for credit losses and maintains allowances for
anticipated losses.

Inventories: In the second quarter of 1994, the Com-
pany changed its method of accounting for inventories
from the last-in, first-out. (LIFO) method to the first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method. The change did not have a sig-
nificant effect on results of operations for 1994, nor is it
anticipated that it will have a material effect on future pe-
riods. Prior to this change, the Company’s inventory
costs would not have differed significantly under the two
methods. The FIFO method is the predominant account-
ing method used in the Company’s industry.

Property, Plant and Equipment: Property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost, less allowances for depre-
ciation. Depreciation expense is computed using ‘the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
the related assets. The annual rates of depreciation are
3% to 5% for buildings and improvements and 7% to
34% for machinery and equipment. Leasehold improve-
ments are amortized over the remaining lease term.

Franchise Assets: The Company operates under fran-
chise agreements with The Coca-Cola Company and
certain other licensers of nonalcoholic beverage prod-
ucts. These agreements include certain production, dis-
tribution and marketing performance obligations and give
the Company the right to distribute and sell products of
the franchiser within a specified territory. The majority of
our products are covered by agreements which are
perpetual in nature and reflect a long and ongoing
relationship with The Coca-Cola Company and other
franchisers. The Company’s agreement covering its op-
erations in the Netherlands is not perpetual solely due to
the fact that none of The Coca-Cola Company’s fran-
chise agreements outside the United States are perpet-
ual. The Company believes this agreement will continue
to be renewed upon expiration and that the economic
period of benefit is ongoing.

Franchise assets, which are stated at cost, are amor-
tized on a straight-line basis generally over the maximum
allowed estimated period of benefit of 40 years. Accumu-
lated amortization amounted to $895 million and $738
million at December 31, 1994 and 1993, respectively.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets: In the event that
facts and circumstances indicate that the cost of franchise
assets or other assets may be impaired, an evaluation of
recoverability would be performed. If an evaluation is re-
quired, the estimated future undiscounted cash flows as-
sociated with the asset would be compared to the asset’s
carrying amount to determine if a write-down to market
value or discounted cash flow value is required.

Self Insurance: The Company is generally self-insured
for losses and liabilities related primarily to workers’ com-
pensation, health and welfare claims, physical damage
to property, business interruption resulting from certain
events, and comprehensive general, product and vehicle
liability. Losses are accrued based upon the Company’s
estimates of the aggregate liability for claims incurred us-
ing certain actuarial assumptions followed in the insur-
ance industry and based on Company experience.

Environmental Compliance and Remediation: Environ-
mental compliance costs include ongoing maintenance,
monitoring and similar costs. Such costs are expensed
as incurred. Environmental remediation costs are ac-
crued, except to the extent costs can be capitalized,
when environmental assessments and/or remedial ef-
forts are probable, and the cost can be reasonably esti-
mated. Environmental costs which improve the condition
of a property as compared to the condition when con-
structed or acquired are capitalized.

Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions: In 1992,
the Company adopted FAS 106, a method of accounting
for postretirement benefits by accrual of the costs of
such benefits during the periods employees provide
service to the Company. The Company previously ac-
counted for such costs as expense when incurred. The
effect on years prior to 1992, representing that portion of
future retiree benefit costs related to past service of both
active and retired employees at the date of adoption,
was reported in 1992 as the cumulative effect of an ac-
counting change.

Income Taxes: In 1992, the Company changed its
method of accounting for income taxes from the deferred
method under Accounting Principles Board Statement
No. 11 to the liability method by adopting FAS 109. FAS
109 requires that deferred tax liabilities and assets be
established based on the difference between the finan-
cial statement and income tax bases of assets and liabili-
ties using existing tax rates. The effect on years prior to
1992 of adopting FAS 109 was reported in 1992 as the
cumulative effect of an accounting change.

Currency Translation: Assets and liabilities of the Neth-
erlands operations are translated from Dutch florins into
dollars at the rate of exchange in effect at the balance
sheet date. Revenues and expenses are translated at
average monthly exchange rates prevailing during the
year. Resulting translation adjustments are reflected in
share-owners’ equity.

Derivative Financial Instruments: The Company em-
ploys (i) interest rate swaps, futures, and options, and (i)
currency forwards and options in the management of in-
terest rate and currency exposures. The Company desig-
nates interest rate swaps, futures and options as hedges
of specific debt instruments and recognizes interest dif-
ferentials as adjustments to interest expense as the dif-
ferentials occur. Realized and unrealized gains and
losses arising from currency forwards and options are
recognized in income as offsets to gains and losses re-
sulting from the underlying hedged transactions. The
Company does not hold or issue financial instruments for
trading purposes.

Marketing Costs: The Company participates in various
advertising and marketing programs with The Coca-Cola
Company and other franchisers. Certain of the Com-
pany’s costs incurred in connection with these programs
are reimbursed. All costs related to marketing and adver-
tising the Company’s products are expensed in the
period incurred or expensed ratably over the year in rela-
tion to revenues or certain other performance measures.
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GENERAL DYNAMICS CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation. The Consolidated Financial
Statements include the accounts of the company and all
majority-owned subsidiaries.

Accounting Estimates. The preparation of financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted ac-
counting principles (GAAP) requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contin-
gent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reported period.

Sales and Earnings Under Long-Term Contracts and
Programs. Major defense programs are accounted for
using the percentage-of-completion method of account-
ing. The combination of estimated profit rates on similar,
economically interdependent contracts is used to de-
velop program earnings rates. These rates are applied to
contract costs, including general and administrative ex-
penses and research and development costs, as in-
curred for the determination of sales and operating
earnings. Program earnings rates are reviewed quarterly
to assess revisions in contract values and estimated
costs at completion. Based on these assessments, any
changes in earnings rates are made prospectively.

Any anticipated losses on contracts or programs are
charged to earnings when identified. Such losses en-
compass all costs, including general and administrative
expenses, allocable to the contracts. Revenue arising
from the claims process is not recognized either as in-
come or as an offset against a potential loss until it can
be reliably estimated and its realization is probable.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and
administrative expenses amounted to $234, $292 and
$233 in 1994, 1993, and 1992, respectively, and are in-
cluded in operating costs and expenses on the Consoli-
dated Statement of Earnings.

Research and Development Costs. Company-spon-
sored research and development costs, including bid and
proposal costs, amounted to $30, $33 and $32 in 1994,
1993 and 1992, respectively, and are included in operat-
ing costs and expenses on the Consolidated Statement
of Earnings.

Interest, Net. Interest income was $27, $40 and $34 in
1994, 1993 and 1992, respectively. Interest expense of
$6 and $22 has been allocated to discontinued busi-
nesses in 1993 and 1992, respectively, on the ratio of
net assets of discontinued operations to consolidated net
assets. Interest expense incurred by the company’s
finance operations totaled $13, $15 and $16, in 1994,
1993 and 1992, respectively, and is classified as operat-
ing costs and expenses. Interest payments for the total
company were $16, $28 and $58 in 1994, 1993 and
1992, respectively.

Net Earnings Per Share. Net earnings per share are
based upon the weighted average number of common
shares and equivalents outstanding during each period.
Common share equivalents are attributable primarily to
outstanding stock options. The weighted average shares
and equivalents were 63.4, 63.3 and 75.6 million in 1994,
1993 and 1992, respectively. As there is not a material
difference between primary and fully diluted earnings per
share, only fully diluted earnings per share are pre-
sented.

Cash and Equivalents and Marketable Securities. The
company considers securities with a remaining maturity
of three months or less when purchased to be cash
equivalents. Marketable securities consist primarily of
tax-exempt municipal bonds, investment grade commer-
cial paper, direct obligations of the U.S. government and
its agencies, preferred stock, and other short-term
investment funds. The company adopted Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 115,
“Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity
Securities,” as of January 1, 1994. The company deter-
mined all of its investments currently held in debt and
equity securities are trading securities as defined by
SFAS 115 and as such are reported at fair value. Prior to
adoption of SFAS 115, cash and equivalents and mar-
ketable securities were stated at cost. Unrealized holding
gains and losses (the adjustment to fair value) recog-
nized in earnings during 1994 were not significant. Ac-
cordingly, the adoption of SFAS 115 did not have a
significant impact on the company’s financial condition or
results of operations.

Accounts Receivable and Contracts in Process. Ac-
counts receivable represent only amounts billed and cur-
rently due from customers. Recoverable costs and
accrued profit related to long-term contracts and pro-
grams on which revenue has been recognized, but bill-
ings have not been presented to the customer (unbilled
receivable), are included in contracts in process.

Contracts in process are stated at cost, plus estimated
earnings, less progress payments. Cost includes
amounts incurred, as well as amounts required to be re-
corded under GAAP which have been deferred. Incurred
costs include production costs and related overhead, in-
cluding general and administrative expenses. Deferred
costs represent the portion of the company’s estimated
workers’ compensation and retiree medical costs which
is not allocable to contracts until incurred.

Real Estate Held for Development. As a result of the
sale of businesses discussed in Note B, certain proper-
ties were retained by the company. These properties are
carried at the lower cost or net realizable value.

Property, Plant and Equipment. Property, plant and
equipment is carried at cost net of accumulated depre-
ciation. The company primarily uses accelerated meth-
ods of depreciation for depreciable assets. Depletion of
coal properties is computed using the units-of-production
method.
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Environmental Liabilities. The company accrues envi-
ronmental costs when it is possible that a liability has
been incurred and the amount can be reasonably esti-
mated. Cleanup and other environmental exit costs re-
lated to discontinued operations are recorded at the time
of disposal of the operation. Recorded liabilities have not
been discounted. To the extent the U.S. government has
specifically agreed to pay the ongoing maintenance and
monitoring costs at sites currently used in the conduct of
the company’s government contracting business, these
costs are treated as contract costs and recognized as in-
curred.

Classification. Consistent with industry practice, assets
and liabilities relating to long-term contracts and pro-
grams are classified as current although a portion of
these amounts is not expected to be realized within one
year.

In addition, certain prior year amounts have been re-
classified to conform to the current year presentation.

THE GOODYEAR TIRE & RUBBER COMPANY (DEC)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Accounting Policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies used in
the preparation of the accompanying financial state-
ments follows:

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the ac-
counts of all majority-owned subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany transactions have been eliminated.

The Company’s investments in 20% and 50% owned
companies in which it has the ability to exercise signifi-
cant influence over operating and financial policies are
accounted for on the equity method. Accordingly, the
Company’s share of the earnings of these companies is
included in consolidated net income. Investments in
other companies are carried at cost.

Revenue Recognition

Substantially all revenues are recognized when finished
products are shipped to unaffiliated customers or serv-
ices have been rendered with appropriate provision for
uncollectible accounts. In conformance with oil industry
practice, revenues resulting from sales of crude oil pur-
chased from third parties are recognized net of the re-
lated acquisition costs.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in
the bank as well as all short term securities held for the
primary purpose of general liquidity. Such securities nor-
mally mature within three months from the date of acqui-
sition. Cash flows associated with items intended as
hedges of identifiable transactions or events are classi-
fied in the same category as the cash flows from the
items being hedged.

Inventory Pricing

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market.
Cost is determined using the last-in, first-out (LIFO)
method for a significant portion of domestic inventories
and the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method or average cost
method for other inventories. Refer to Note 4.

Properties and Plants

Properties and plants are stated at cost. Depreciation is
computed on the straight line method. Accelerated de-
preciation is used for income tax purposes, where per-
mitted. Refer to Note 5.

Foreign Currency Translation

Financial statements of international subsidiaries are
translated into U.S. dollars using the exchange rate at
each balance sheet date for assets and liabilities and a
weighted average exchange rate for each period for
revenues, expenses and gains and losses. Where the
local currency is the functional currency, translation ad-
justments are recorded as a separate component of
shareholders’ equity. Where the U.S. dollar is the func-
tional currency, translation adjustments are recorded in
income.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are recognized during the year in which
transactions enter into the determination of financial
statement income, with deferred taxes being provided for
temporary differences between amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and such
amounts as measured by tax laws. Refer to Note 15.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative financial instruments are utilized by the Com-
pany to reduce interest rate and foreign exchange risks.
The Company has established a control environment
which includes policies and procedures for risk assess-
ment and the approval, reporting and monitoring of de-
rivative financial instrument activities. The Company
does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for
trading purposes.

Interest Rate Contracts — The differentials to be re-
ceived or paid under contracts designated as hedges are
recognized in income over the life of the contracts as ad-
justments to Interest Expense. Gains and losses on ter-
minations of interest rate contracts are recognized as
Other (Income) and Expense when terminated in con-
junction with the retirement of associated debt. Gains
and losses are deferred and amortized to Interest Ex-
pense over the remaining life of the associated debt to
the extent that such debt remains outstanding.

Foreign Exchange Contracts — Gains and losses on
contracts designated as hedges of existing assets and Ii-
abilities are accrued as exchange rates change and are
recognized in income as Foreign Currency Exchange.
Gains and losses on contracts designated as hedges of
net investments in foreign subsidiaries are accrued as
exchange rates change and are recognized in Share-
holders’ Equity as Foreign currency translation adjust-
ment. Gains and losses on contracts designated as
hedges of identifiable foreign currency firm commitments
are deferred and included in the measurement of the re-
lated foreign currency transaction. Refer to Note 6.
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Environmental Cleanup Matters

The Company expenses environmental expenditures re-
lated to existing conditions resulting from past or current
operations and from which no current or future benefit is
discernible. Expenditures which extend the life of the re-
lated property or mitigate or prevent future environmental
contamination are capitalized. The Company determines
its liability on a site by site basis and records a liability at
the time when it is probable and can be reasonably esti-
mated. The Company’s estimated liability is reduced to
reflect the anticipated participation of other potentially re-
sponsible parties in those instances where it is probable
that such parties are legally responsible and financially
capable of paying their respective shares of the relevant
costs. The estimated liability of the Company is not dis-
counted or reduced for possible recoveries from insur-
ance carriers. Refer to Note 17.

Advertising Costs

Costs incurred for producing and communicating adver-
tising are expensed when incurred, including costs in-
curred under the Company’s domestic cooperative ad-
vertising program with dealers and franchisees, which
normally are incurred subsequent to the first time the ad-
vertising takes place. Refer to Note 10.

Per Share of Common Stock

Per share amounts have been computed based on the
average number of common shares outstanding. On May
4, 1993, a two-for-one split of the Company’s common
stock was effected in the form of a stock dividend of one
share of common stock on each share of common stock
outstanding at the close of business on April 30, 1993.
The Company’s articles of incorporation were amended
to increase the number of authorized shares of common
stock from 150,000,000 to 300,000,000 following share-
holder approval.

Accordingly, certain share and per share data has
been restated, where required, to retroactively reflect the
stock split. Common stock was credited $1 and retained
earnings was charged a like amount for each share of
common stock issued pursuant to the stock spit.

Reclassification

Certain items previously reported in specific financial
statement captions have been reclassified to conform
with the 1994 presentation.

MINNESOTA MINING AND MANUFACTURING
COMPANY (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Accounting Policies

Consolidation: All significant subsidiaries are consoli-
dated. Unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates are in-
cluded on the equity basis.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash and cash equiva-
lents consist of cash and temporary investments with
maturities of three months or less when purchased.

Other Securities and Investments: Other securities
consist of marketable securities and interest-bearing
bank deposits with varied maturity dates. These securi-
ties are employed in the company’s banking, captive in-
surance and cash management operations. Investments
primarily include assets from captive insurance, banking
operations, other insurance, and real estate and venture
capital investments.

Effective January 1, 1994, the company adopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS)
No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt
and Equity Securities.” Other securities and investments
classified as available-for-sale are reported at their fair
value of about $160 million at December 31, 1994, with
unrealized gains and losses included as a component of
stockholders’ equity. Held-to-maturity securities and in-
vestments are reported at amortized cost of about $350
million at December 31, 1994. Other investments totaling
about $220 million are stated at cost, which approxi-
mates fair value.

Inventories: Inventories are stated at lower of cost or
market, with cost generally determined on a first-in, first-
out basis.

Other Assets: Other assets include goodwill, patents,
other intangibles, product and other insurance claims,
deferred taxes and other noncurrent assets. Intangible
assets are periodically reviewed for impairment based on
an assessment of future operations to ensure that they
are appropriately valued. Goodwill is generally amortized
on a straight-line basis over 10 years. Other intangible
items are amortized on a straight-line basis over their es-
timated economic lives.

Effective January 1, 1994, the company adopted FASB
Interpretation No. 39, which requires gross reporting for
environmental and other liabilities, and for any related in-
surance claims. This adoption primarily increased “Other
Assets” and “Other Liabilities” from year-end 1993 bal-
ances.

Deferred Income Taxes: Deferred income taxes arise
from differences in bases between tax reporting and fi-
nancial reporting.

Revenue Recognition: Revenue is recognized upon
shipment of goods to customers and upon performance
of services. The company sells a wide range of products
to a diversified base of customers around the world, and
therefore believes that no material concentrations of
credit risk exist.

Depreciation: Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment is generally computed on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of these assets.

Research and Development: Research and develop-
ment costs are charged to operations as incurred and
totaled $1.054 biltion in 1994, $1.030 billion in 1993 and
$1.007 billion in 1992,

Advertising Costs: Advertising costs are generally
charged to operations in the year incurred and totaled
$191 million in 1994, $161 million in 1993 and $172 mil-
lion in 1992.
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Foreign Currency Translation: Local currencies are
generally considered the functional currencies outside
the United States, except in countries treated as highly
inflationary. Assets and liabilities are transiated at year-
end exchange rates for operations in local currency envi-
ronments. Income and expense items are translated at
average rates of exchange prevailing during the year.
Cumulative translation adjustments, recorded as a com-
ponent of stockholders’ equity, reduced stockholders’
equity by $163 million, $331 million and $198 million at
December 31, 1994, 1993 and 1992, respectively.

For operations in countries treated as highly inflation-
ary, certain financial statement amounts are translated at
historical exchange rates, with all other assets and liabili-
ties translated at year-end exchange rates. These trans-
lation adjustments are reflected in the results of
operations. They decreased net income by $20 million in
1994 and $12 million in 1993, and increased net income
by $10 million in 1992.

Derivatives: Derivative financial- instruments are util-
ized by the company to manage risks generally associ-
ated with foreign exchange rate and interest rate market
volatility. The company does not hold or issue derivative
financial instruments for trading purposes. The company
is not a party to leveraged derivatives. Realized and un-
realized gains and losses are deferred until the underly-
ing transactions are realized. These gains and losses
are recognized either as interest expense over the bor-
rowing period for interest rate and currency swaps, as an
adjustment to cost of goods sold for inventory-related
hedge transactions, or in stockholders’ equity for hedges
of net investments in international companies. Cash
flows attributable to these financial instruments are in-
cluded with the cash flows from the associated hedged
items.

ACCOUNTING CHANGES

APB Opinion No. 20 “defines various types of accounting
changes and establishes guides for determining the
manner of reporting each type.” Table 1-8 lists the ac-
counting changes disclosed in the 1994 annual reports
of the survey companies.

The requirements of SFAS No. 106, Postretirement
Benefits, and SFAS No. 109, Income Taxes, are effec-
tive for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 1992.
The requirements of SFAS No. 112, Postemployment
Benefits, and SFAS No. 115, Investments in Debt and
Equity Securities, are effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 1993, and therefore did not apply to
all of the 1994 survey companies.

Of the 89 companies adopting SFAS No. 109, 81 com-
panies did not restate prior year financial statements and
8 companies did restate prior year financial statements.
Of the 44 companies adopting SFAS No. 106, 37 com-
panies immediately recognized the accumulated postre-
tirement benefit obligation and 7 companies are
recognizing the obligation over a 20-year period.

Examples of accounting change disclosures follow.

TABLE 1-8: ACCOUNTING CHANGES

Number of Companies
1994 1993 1992 1991

Pension actuarial

assumptions. ................ 274 224 121 151
Investments (SFAS 115) ......... 108 21
Income taxes:

SFAS 109 adopted ............ 89 233 244 16

SFAS 96 adopted . ............ 16
Postemployment benefits . ....... 80 87 21
Postretirement benefits .. ........ 4 176 198 39
Depreciablelives ............... 6 6 6 4
Inventories:

LIFO discontinued. ............ 1 6 4 3

LIFOadopted ................ 1 1 3 2

Capitalization of

costs formerly expensed. . .. .. 1 2 3

Other....................... 2 2 3
Reinsurance contracts........... 2 7
Reportingentity. ............... 1 5 5 1
Depreciation method . ........... 3 3 5
Other ........................ 28 21 17 18
investments

OGDEN CORPORATION (DEC)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Marketable Securities:

Ogden adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) 115, “Accounting for Certain Invest-
ments in Debt and Equity Securities,” at January 1,
1994. In accordance with SFAS 115, prior years’ finan-
cial statements have not been restated to reflect the
change in accounting method. Under this Statement, the
Corporation’s marketable securities have been classified
as available for sale and are recorded at current market
value with an offsetting adjustment to Shareholders’
Equity. The adoption of this Statement did not have a
significant effect on the Corporation’s consolidated finan-
cial position. At December 31, 1993, marketable securi-
ties were carried at the lower of cost or market. Net unre-
alized losses on noncurrent marketable equity securities
were charged to Shareholders’ Equity (see Note 2).
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2. (In Part): Investments in Marketable Securities
Available for Sale

Ogden adopted SFAS 115, “Accounting for Certain In-
vestments in Debt and Equity Securities,” at January 1,
1994, and has classified its marketable securities as
available for sale and recorded them at current market
value with an offsetting adjustment to Shareholders’
Equity. In accordance with SFAS 115, prior years’ finan-
cial statements have not been restated to reflect this
change in accounting. At December 31, 1993, market-
able securities were carried at the lower of cost or mar-
ket. Net unrealized losses on noncurrent marketable
equity securities were charged to Shareholders’ Equity.
At December 31, 1993, noncurrent marketable securities
having a cost of $5,549,000 and a market value of
$4,846,000 resulted in an unrealized loss of $703,000,
which was offset by deferred income taxes of $276,000.
The net valuation allowance of $427,000 was charged to
Shareholders’ Equity.

At December 31, 1994 and 1993, marketable equity
and debt securities available for current operations are
classified in the balance sheet as current assets while
securities held for noncurrent uses such as nonqualified
pension liabilities and a deferred compensation plan are
classified as long-term assets.

J.C. PENNEY COMPANY, INC. (JAN)

Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies

Investments. Effective January 30, 1994, the Company
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in
Debt and Equity Securities. This statement requires that
securities be classified as trading, held-to-maturity, or
available-for-sale. The Company’s investments, which
consist of fixed income securities (principally bonds) held
by JCPenney Insurance, marketable equity securities,
and JCP Receivables, Inc. asset-backed certificates held
by the Company, are classified as available-for-sale and
are carried at fair value. Changes in unrealized gains
and losses are recorded directly to stockholders’ equity,
net of applicable income taxes. Adoption of this state-
ment had no material effect on the Company’s invest-
ments, deferred taxes, and stockholders’ equity, as
reflected on the consolidated balance sheet at January
28, 1995, and had no impact on net income. In 1993 and
1992, fixed income securities and asset-backed certifi-
cates were carried at amortized cost on the consolidated
balance sheets.

TRIBUNE COMPANY (DEC)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

New Accounting Principles — In 1994, the Company
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS”) No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in
Debt and Equity Securities.” The statement generally re-
quires the Company to record investments in debt and
equity securities at their market value, except for debt
securities that the Company intends to hold to maturity
and equity securities that are accounted for using the
equity method. At December 25, 1994, the Company has
recorded an unrealized gain on investments of approxi-
mately $78 miilion, which is net of a tax effect of $50 mil-
lion, in a separate component of stockholders’ invest-
ment. The market value of the Company’s long-term
investments in equity securities with readily determinable
fair values was approximately. $87 million and the cost
basis was $24 million. The QUNO convertible debenture
(see note 2) has a cost basis of $138.8 million and a fair
value of $204 million based on the Canadian quoted
market price per share of the underlying QUNO common
stock at December 25, 1994. There was no effect on net
income as a result of this adoption. The Company esti-
mates that the effect of adopting this statement in 1993
would have been to increase assets by approximately
$100 million and stockholders’ investment by $60 million
at December 26, 1993, with no impact on net income.

WALBRO CORPORATION (DEC)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 3. (In Part): Investments.

Effective January 1, 1994, the Company adopted SFAS
No. 115, “Accounting for Certain investments in Debt
and Equity Securities.” This Statement requires that cer-

" tain investments be classified into three separate catego-

ries: “held-to-maturity”, “available-for-sale”, and “trading,”
each with different accounting treatment. The Company
has classified its investments in common stock securities
as “available-for-sale” which requires the Company to re-
cord these investments at fair market value and record
the gross unrealized holding gains and losses, after-tax,
as a separate component of stockholders’ equity. The
impact of adoption at January 1, 1994 was to increase
investments by approximately $3,225,000 and to in-
crease stockholders’ equity by $2,096,000, net of income
taxes.
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Income Taxes

ANACOMP, INC. (SEP)

Consolidated Statements of Operations

(Dollars in thousands,
except per share amounts) 1994 1993 1992

Income from continuing operations

before income taxes, extraordinary

credit and cumulative effect of

accounting change $16,896  $22,925
Provision for income taxes 9,100 9,900

Income from continuing

operations before extraordinary

credit and cumulative effect of

accounting change 7,796
Loss from discontinued

operations, net of income

tax benefits (841)
Extraordinary credit-Reduction of

income taxes arising from

utilization of tax loss

carryforwards 6,900 8,700
Cumulative effect on prior years

of a change in accounting

for income taxes 8,000

Net income $14,955

$35,267
15,400

13,025 19,867

(1,334)  (1,646)

$18,591  $26,921

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies:

Income Taxes

In general, Anacomp’s practice is to reinvest the earn-
ings of its foreign subsidiaries in those operations and to
repatriate these earnings only when it is advantageous
to do so. It is expected that the amount of U.S. federal
tax resulting from a repatriation will not be significant. Ac-
cordingly, deferred tax is not being recorded related to
undistributed foreign earnings.

In February 1992, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Stand-
ards No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes” (FAS 109).
FAS 109 mandates the liability method for computing de-
ferred income taxes and requires that the benefit of cer-
tain loss carryforwards be estimated and recorded as an
asset unless it is “more likely than not” that the benefit
will not be realized. Another principal difference is that
changes in tax rates and laws will be reflected in income
from continuing operations in the period such changes
are enacted.

Anacomp adopted FAS 109 in the first quarter of fiscal
1994. Under FAS 109, the Company has recorded a sig-
nificant deferred tax asset to reflect the benefit of loss
carryforwards that could not be recognized under prior
accounting rules. The recording of this asset reduced
goodwill and increased income as discussed in more de-
tail in Note 10.

Note 10. (In Part): iIncome Taxes:

The Company adopted FAS 109 in the first quarter of fis-
cal 1994 and recorded a deferred tax asset of $95 million
representing the federal and state tax savings from net
operating loss carryforwards (NOLs) and tax credits. The
Company also recorded a valuation allowance of $60
million reducing the deferred tax asset to a net $35 mil-
lion. Recognition of the deferred tax asset reduced good-
will by $27 million and provided a cumulative effect in-
crease to income of $8 million. During 1994, the net
deferred tax asset was reduced to $29 million, reflecting
usage of the asset to reduce income taxes payable by
$6 million. Future utilization, if any, of NOLs and tax
credits for which a valuation allowance was provided, will
further reduce goodwill up to $37 million, increase ac-
crued income taxes up to $13 million and increase capi-
tal in excess of par value up to $7 million.

GREIF BROS. CORPORATION (OCT)

Consolidated Statements of Earnings
Retained for Use in the Business

(Dollars in thousands,
except per share amounts) 1994 1993 1992

Balance at beginning of year,
as previously reported

Effect of restatement as
required by SFAS No. 109
(see Note 5) 401 1,025 1,679

Balance at beginning of year,
as restated

$298,356 $283,251 $261,615

298,757 284,276 263,294

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

Income Taxes

The Financial Accounting Standards Board has issued
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS)
No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes” which changed
the method for calculating deferred income taxes. The
Company adopted SFAS No. 109, retroactive to Novem-
ber 1, 1990. Certain prior year amounts in the Com-
pany’s financial statements have been restated.
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Note 5. (In Part): Income Taxes

The Company adopted SFAS No. 109, retroactive to No-
vember 1, 1990, as discussed in Note 1 to the Consoli-
dated Financial Statements. In connection with the adop-
tion of SFAS No. 109, the Company recorded a one time
adjustment that resulted in a reduction of the deferred in-
come tax liability and the recording of a deferred tax as-
set. Certain prior year amounts in the Company’s finan-
cial statements have been restated. The effect on net
income was a reduction of net income of $624,000 or
$.05 per share for 1993, a reduction of net income of
$654,000 or $.05 per share for 1992 and an addition to
net income of $1,679,000 or $.14 per share for 1991.

MINNTECH CORPORATION (MAR)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note A. (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

Income Taxes

Effective April 1, 1993, the Company adopted Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, “Accounting
for Income Taxes” (FAS 109). This standard requires a
change from the deferred method of accounting for in-
come taxes to the asset and liability method. Under the
new standard, deferred tax assets and liabilities are rec-
ognized for the future tax consequences attributable to
differences between the financial statement carrying
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their re-
spective tax bases. Under the deferred method, which
was applied in fiscal 1993 and prior years, deferred in-
come taxes were recognized. for income and expense
items that were reported in different years for financial
reporting purposes and income tax purposes. The adop-
tion of the new standard did not have a material impact
on the Company’s financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 1994.

OXFORD INDUSTRIES, INC. (MAY)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

8. Income Taxes

Effective May 29, 1993, the Company adopted State-
ment of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, “Ac-
counting for Income Taxes,” in which deferred tax liabili-
ties and assets are determined based on the difference
between financial and tax bases of assets and liabilities
using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the
differences are expected to reverse. The adoption did
not have a significant impact on the Company’s financial
statements.

TRINITY INDUSTRIES, INC. (MAR)

Consolidated Income Statement

(in millions except per share data) 1994 1993 1992

Income before income taxes
and cumulative effect
of change in accounting for

income taxes $114.2 $72.1 $39.7
Provision (benefit) for

income taxes:

Current 451 257 204

Deferred (1.3) 14 (5.0)

Effect of statutory rate increase 21

45.9 271 154

Income before cumulative effect

of change in accounting for

income taxes 68.3 45.0 24.3
Cumulative effect as of

April 1, 1993 of change in

accounting for income taxes 79

Net income $76.2 $45.0 $24.3

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Income Taxes (In Part):

Effective April 1, 1993, the Company adopted Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, “Accounting
for Income Taxes.” This Statement requires a change
from the deferred to the liability method of computing in-
come taxes. As permitted by Statement No. 109, the
Company has elected not to restate the financial state-
ments of any prior period. The cumulative effect of apply-
ing the change in accounting method is a decrease in the
Company’s deferred tax liability and a nonrecurring credit
of $7.9 or $0.20 per share.
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Postemployment Benefits

MOSINEE PAPER CORPORATION (DEC)

Consolidated Statements of Income

(% thousands except share data) 1994 1993 1992

Income before income taxes
and cumulative effect

adjustment $21541 $17387 § 59
Provision for income taxes 8,500 7,750 22
Income before cumulative

effect of changes in

accounting principles 13,041 9,637 37
Cumulative effect of changes

in accounting principles

(net of income taxes) ( 750) - (8,537)
Net income (loss) $12,291  $ 9637 ($8,500)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. (In Part): Changes in Accounting Policies

On January 1, 1994, the company adopted Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 112 “Em-
ployers’ Accounting for Postemployment Benefits” which
requires the company to accrue for the estimated cost of
benefits provided by an employer to former or inactive
employees after employment but before retirement. Pre-
viously, the cost of these benefits were expensed as
they were incurred. The cumulative effect of $750,000 is
shown net of income taxes of $400,000 and represents
the entire liability for such benefits earned through 1993.
The impact of this accounting change on 1994 operating
results is not material.

THE PENN TRAFFIC COMPANY (JAN)

Consolidated Statement of Operations
(All dollar amounts in thousands,
except per share data) 1995 1994 1993

Income before extraordinary
item and cumulative effect of

change in accounting principle  $22,025  $8,176  $3,991
Extraordinary item
(net of tax benefit) (3,025) (25,843) (10,823)
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle (Note 3) (5,790)
Net Income (loss) 13,210  (17,667)  (6,832)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 3. (In Part): Employee Benefit Plans

Effective January 30, 1994, the Company adopted State-
ment of Financial Accounting Standards No. 112, “Em-
ployers’ Accounting for Postemployment Benefits”
("SFAS 112"). SFAS 112 requires employers to recog-
nize the obligation to provide postemployment benefits
on an accrual basis if certain conditions are met. The cu-
mulative effect of the change in accounting principle de-
termined as of January 30, 1994 reduced net income
$5.8 million, net of a $4.1 million income tax benefit, for
the fiscal year ended January 28, 1995.

PEPSICO, INC. (DEC)

Consolidated Statement of Income

(in millions
except per share amounts) 1994 1993 1992

Income Before Income Taxes

and Cumulative Effect of

Accounting Changes $2,664.4 $2,4225 $1,898.8
Provision for income Taxes 8804 834.6 5971

Income Before Cumulative

Effect of Accounting Changes
Cumulative Effect of

Accounting Changes
Postemployment benefits

(net of income tax

benefit of $29.3)
Pension assets (net of

income tax expense of $14.5) 23.3
Postretirement benefits other

than pensions (net of income

tax benefit of $218.6) — — (356.7)
Income taxes — —_ (570.7)

Net Income $1,7520 $1,5879 §$ 3743

$1,7840 15879 11,3017

(55.3) — —
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 13. (In Part): Pension Plans

In 1994, PepsiCo changed the method for calculating the
market-related value of plan assets used in determining
the return-on-asset component of annual pension ex-
pense and the cumulative net unrecognized gain or loss
subject to amortization. Under the previous accounting
method, the calculation of the market-related value of as-
sets reflected amortization of the actual capital return on
assets on a straight-line basis over a five-year period.
Under the new method, the calculation of the market-
related value of assets reflects the long-term rate of re-
turn expected by PepsiCo and amortization of the differ-
ence between the actual return (including capital, divi-
dends and interest) and the expected return over a
five-year period. PepsiCo believes the new method is
widely used in practice and preferable because it results
in calculated plan asset values that more closely approxi-
mate fair value, while still mitigating the effect of annual
market-value fluctuations. Under both methods, only the
cumulative net unrecognized gain or loss which exceeds
10% of the greater of the projected benefit obligation or
the market-related value of plan assets is subject to am-
ortization. This change resulted in a noncash benefit in
1994 of $37.8 million ($23.3 million after-tax or $0.03 per
share) representing the cumulative effect of the change
related to years prior to 1994 and $35.1 million in lower
pension expense ($21.6 million after-tax or $0.03 per
share) related to 1994 as compared to the previous ac-
counting method. Had this change been applied retroac-
tively, pension expense would have been reduced by
$16.4 million ($10.7 million after-tax or $0.01 per share)
and $9.5 million ($6.5 million after-tax or $0.01 per
share) in 1993 and 1992, respectively.

Note 14. Postemployment Benefits Other
Than to Retirees

Effective the beginning of 1994, PepsiCo adopted State-
ment of Financial Accounting Standards No. 112 (SFAS
112), “Employers’ Accounting for Postemployment Bene-
fits.” SFAS 112 requires PepsiCo to accrue the cost of
certain postemployment benefits to be paid to terminated
or inactive employees other than retirees. The principal
effect to PepsiCo results from accruing severance bene-
fits to be provided to employees of certain business units
who are terminated in the ordinary course of business
over the expected service lives of the employees. Pre-
viously, these benefits were accrued upon the occur-
rence of an event. Severance benefits resulting from ac-
tions not in the ordinary course of business will continue
to be accrued when those actions occur. The cumulative
effect charge upon adoption of SFAS 112, which relates
to years prior to 1994, was $84.6 million ($55.3 million
after-tax or $0.07 per share). As compared to the pre-
vious accounting method, the current year impact of
adopting SFAS 112 was immaterial to 1994 operating
profits. PepsiCo’s cash flows have been unaffected by
this accounting change as PepsiCo continues to largely
fund postemployment benefit costs as incurred.

Postretirement Benefits

EMERSON ELECTRIC CO. (SEP)

Consolidated Statements of Earnings

(Dollars in millions
except per share amounts) 1994 1993 1992

Income before income taxes and

cumulative effect of change

in accounting principle $1427.8 $1,112.0 $1,043.9
Income taxes 523.4 403.9 381.0

Income before cumulative

effect of change in

accounting principle 904.4 708.1 662.9
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting for postretirement

benefits ($190.0 less income

tax benefit of $74.1);

$.52 per common share {115.9) —_ —

Net earnings 788.5 708.1 662.9

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7 (In Pant): Postretirement Plans

The Company sponsors unfunded postretirement benefit
plans (primarily health care) for U.S. retirees and their
dependents. Effective October 1, 1993, the Company
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement
Benefits Other Than Pensions” (OPEB), which requires
that these costs be accrued over the service lives of em-
ployees. The Company recognized the transition obliga-
tion arising from service prior to adoption in the first
quarter as a cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle of $115.9 million (net of $74.1 million in related
income tax benefits). In addition, prior to adoption the
Company had recorded OPEB liabilities of approximately
$100 million in accordance with Accounting Principles
Board Opinion No. 16. The statement will not have a
material impact on the Company’s ongoing results of
operations.

Total postretirement plan expense for the year ended
September 30, 1994 was $27.3 million, consisting of
$5.6 million service cost and $21.7 million interest. Prior
to the adoption of SFAS No. 106, postretirement plan ex-
pense was approximately $16 million and $11 million for
1993 and 1992, respectively.
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FIRST BRANDS CORPORATION (JUN)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Accounting Changes

Effective July 1, 1993, the Company adopted Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 106 “Em-
ployers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other
than Pensions”. SFAS No. 106 requires that companies
accrue the projected future cost of providing postretire-
ment benefits during the period that employees render
the services necessary to be eligible for such benefits.
While the adoption of this standard does have an impact
on the Company’s reported net income, it does not im-
pact First Brand’s cash flow because the Company in-
tends to continue its current practice of paying the cost
of postretirement benefits as incurred. The Company has
elected to recognize the effect of the change to SFAS
No. 106 by amortizing the transition obligation of
$16,767,000 over 20 years (see Note 12).

12 (In Part): Employee Benefits

Postretirement Benefits
In addition to providing pension benefits, the Company
provides certain medical and life insurance benefits for
retirees and their dependents in the United States. Em-
ployees who have reached the age of 55, and have met
the Company’s minimum service requirements, become
eligible for these benefits. The medical and life insurance
benefits available are partially contributory in nature, and
it is the Company’s practice to fund these benefits as in-
curred. Retirees outside the United States are generally
covered by locally sponsored government programs.
Postretirement benefit costs for 1994 were $2,528,000,
which is comprised of $381,000 for service costs,
$1,307,000 for interest cost and $840,000 for the amorti-
zation of the transition obligation. Prior to adopting SFAS
No. 106 postretirement benefits were expensed as
claims were paid, and amounted to $646,000 and
$394,000 for 1993 and 1992, respectively.

THIOKOL CORPORATION (JUN)

Consolidated Statements of Income

(in millions,
except per share data) 1994 1993 1992

Income before cumulative

effect of accounting changes $60.3 $63.8 $63.0
Cumulative effect of

accounting changes (63.8)

Net (loss) income $(3.5) $63.8 $63.0

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note A (In Part): Significant Accounting Policies

Accounting Changes: Effective July 1, 1993, the Com-
pany adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Stand-
ards (SFAS) No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting for Postre-
tirement Benefits Other Than Pensions,” and SFAS No.
112, “Employers’ Accounting for Postemployment Bene-
fits,” as described in Notes | and J.

Note I (In Part): Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pen-
sions

In addition to providing pension benefits, the Company
provides certain health care and life insurance benefits
for substantially all of its retirees and eligible depend-
ents. During 1992, the plan for providing these benefits
was revised for employees retiring after February 1,
1993. The current plan is contributory, with retiree contri-
bution levels adjusted annually, and contains other cost-
sharing features including deductibles and coinsurance.
Under the revised plan, the Company’s cost for retiree
medical is limited to a 4 percent annual increase. Current
eligibility requirements include ten years of credited
service after attaining age forty-five.

Effective July 1, 1993, the Company adopted SFAS
No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement
Benefits Other than Pensions.” The standard requires
the Company to accrue the expected cost of postretire-
ment benefits during the period of employee eligible
service rather than the prior policy of charging the costs
against earnings as the amounts were paid. The Com-
pany recognized the transition obligation as a one-time
charge to earnings. At July 1,1993, the accumulated
postretirement obligation recognized was $81.9 million.
The effect on 1994 earnings and shareholders’ equity
was $51.6 million ($2.59 per share) after a deferred in-
come tax benefit of $30.3 million. A significant portion of
the charge is expected to be recovered in future years as
amounts are funded and allocated to Government con-
tracts. The Company’s policy is to fund the cost of retiree
medical benefits at management’s discretion. Voluntary
Employees’ Beneficiary Association (VEBA) trusts and
other trusts under IRS regulations were established in
1994 for funding purposes. The amounts funded are tax
deductible in the year of contribution under current IRS
regulations.

Retiree medical and life insurance costs for the year
ended June 30, 1994, are as follows:

(in millions)
Service cost-attributed to service

during the period $2.4
Interest cost on accumulated postretirement

benefit obligation 6.5
Retiree medical and life insurance costs $8.9

{
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Amounts paid for retiree medical and life insurance
costs were $6.5 and $4.8 million in 1993 and 1992,
respectively.

Note J. Postemployment Benefits

Effective July 1, 1993, the Company adopted SFAS No.
112, “Employers’ Accounting for Postemployment Bene-
fits.” This accounting standard requires the Company to
accrue the expected cost of postemployment benefits
provided to former employees or their beneficiaries
rather than the prior policy of charging the costs against
earnings as the amounts were paid. The liability, which
relates to long-term disability benefits and medical bene-
fits recognized at July 1, 1993, was $19.3 million. The
cumulative effect on earnings and shareholders’ equity
was $12.2 million ($.61 per share) after a deferred in-
come tax benefit of $7.1 million.

Contributions

BROWN-FORMAN CORPORATION (APR)

Consolidated Statement of Income

(Expressed in thousands,
except per share amounts) 1994 1993 1992

Income before income taxes and
cumulative effect of
accounting changes

$257,227 $242,577 $223,692

Taxes on income 96,158 86,387 77,339
Income before cumulative

effect of accounting changes 161,069 156,190 146,353
Cumulative effect of

accounting changes (32,542) — —
Net income $128,527 $156,190 $146,353

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Accounting Changes

On May 1, 1993, the company adopted Statement of Fi-
nancial Accounting Standards No. 106, “Employers’ Ac-
counting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pen-
sions,” and Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 112, “Employers’ Accounting for Postemployment
Benefits.” See Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pen-
sions and Postemployment Benefits on page 32. In the
third quarter of 1994, the company adopted Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 116, “Accounting for
Contributions Received and Contributions Made,” and re-
stated the first quarter as if adoption had occurred May
1, 1993. Accordingly, the company recorded a liability for
charitable contributions unconditionally pledged but not
yet paid.

The cumulative effect of these changes in accounting
principles are as follows (in thousands).

FAS Statement No.
106 112 116 Total
Pretax charge $43,684  $2,817  $6,721  $53,222
Income taxes 16,955 1,104 2,621 20,680
Net charge $26,729  $1,713 ~ $4,100 $32,542
Net charge per
common share $.34 $.02 $.05 $.41

Effective January 31, 1994, the company adopted
Statement of Position 93-7, “Reporting on Advertising
Costs.” This statement was issued by the American Insti-
tute of Certified Public Accountants and requires the
company to prospectively capitalize and amortize direct-
response advertising to better match revenues with ex-
penses. The company continues to expense other
advertising costs as incurred.

On May 1, 1993, the company adopted Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, “Accounting for
Income Taxes.”

The adoption of these standards did not materially af-
fect 1994 earnings before the cumulative effect of ac-
counting changes.

Loan Impairment
CATERPILLAR INC. (DEC)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. (In Part): Accounting changes

In the first quarter of 1994, the company changed its
method of computing LIFO inventories from a single pool
approach to a multiple pool approach for substantially all
of its inventories. The company believes that the multiple
pool method results in a better matching of revenue and
expenses. The cumulative effect of the change on prior
years was not determinable. This change did not have a
material effect on 1994 results of operations or financial
position.

Effective January 1, 1994, the company adopted SFAS
114, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan,”
as amended by SFAS 118. The adoption of these stand-
ards did not have a material effect on the company’s fi-
nancial position or results of operations.
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Start-Up Costs
INTERNATIONAL PAPER COMPANY (DEC)

Consolidated Statement of Earnings
In millions,
except per share amounts 1994 1993 1992

Earnings Before Extraordinary
item and Cumulative Effect

of Accounting Changes $432 $ 289 $142
Extraordinary item-loss on

extinguishment of debt

(less tax benefit of $3) (6)

Cumulative effect of change
in accounting for:
Start-up costs (less tax

benefit of $50)-Note 3 (75)
Income taxes (50)
Net Earnings $ 357 $ 289 $ 86

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 3. Start-up Costs ~
Effective January 1, 1994, the Company changed its
method of accounting for start-up costs on major projects
to expense these costs as incurred. Prior to 1994, the
Company capitalized these costs and amortized them
over a five-year period. This change was made to in-
crease the focus on controlling costs associated W|th fa-
cility start-ups.

The Company restated 1994 first-quarter results to re-
cord a pre-tax charge of $125 million ($75 million after
taxes or $.60 per share) as the cumulative effect of this
accounting change. This change also decreased 1994
total costs and expenses by $17 million ($10 million after
taxes or $.08 per share). On a pro forma basis, this
change would have increased 1992 total costs and ex-
penses by $33 million ($20 million after taxes or $.17 per
share) and would have had no impact on 1993.

Contracts
LYNCH CORPORATION (DEC)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 (In Part): Accounting and Reporting Policies
Accounting for Long-Term Contracts: During 1994,
Lynch Machinery, Inc., a 90% owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered intoand began production on two
contracts, one with a company located in China and the
other with, a company located in South Korea to produce
nine giass forming machines over a two-year period. The
contracts call for total payments of approximately $23.9
million, for which advances of approximately $4.6 million
have been received. Further payments under the con-
tracts are secured by irrevocable letters of credit in favor
of Lynch Machinery.

Lynch Machinery has also entered into-two additional
contracts to produce two more glass forming machines;
one to be shipped to China and one in the United States.
The contracts call for payments of $4.4 million, however,
production has not commenced.

Because of the specialized nature of these machines
and the period of time needed to complete production
and shipping, in 1994 Lynch Machinery changed its
method of accounting for long-term contracts from the
completed contract method to the percentage of comple-
tion method, based upon costs incurred, which provides
a better matching of costs and revenues for this type of
contract. Prior to 1994, these contracts were not a signifi-
cant portion of Lynch Machinery’s business. As required,
all previously issued financial statements have been re-
stated to reflect this change in accounting.

The effect of this change in accounting was to in-
crease (decrease) revenue by $2.7 million, $(292,000)
and $1.0 million and increase net income by $444,000
($.33 per share), $14,000 ($.01 per share) and $220,000
($.17 per share) for the years ended December 31,
1994, 1993 and 1992, respectively. In addition, retained
earnings at January 1, 1992, has been increased by
$16,000 restated to reflect the cumulative effect of this
change.

Reporting Period For Subsidiaries
MAYTAG CORPORATION (DEC)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (In Part):
Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial
statements include the accounts and transactions of the
Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. Inter-
company accounts and transactions are eliminated in
consolidation.
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Prior to the quarter ended December 31, 1994, the
Company’s European subsidiaries were consolidated as
of a date one month earlier than subsidiaries in the
United States. In the fourth quarter of 1994, this one-
month reporting lag was eliminated and European results
for the quarter ended December 31, 1994 included activ-
ity for four months. The effect of this change increased
net sales by $25.2 million in the fourth quarter of 1994,
and the impact on net income was not significant.

Calculation of Oil and Gas Asset Ceiling Test

ORYX ENERGY COMPANY (DEC)

Consolidated Statements of Income
(Millions of Dollars,
Except Per Share Amounts) 1994 1993 1992

Income (loss) before extraordinary
item and cumulative effect of

accounting change $ (65 % (93) $73
Extraordinary item (12) {7) —
Cumulative effect of accounting

change (Note 7) (948) — (59)

Net Income (Loss) $(1,025) $(100) $14

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. Accounting Change

Effective January 1, 1994, the Company changed its ac-
counting policy for calculating the oil and gas asset ceil-
ing test from a total company basis to an individual field
basis. The Company believes the field basis is preferable
because it is the way the Company manages its busi-
ness. The basis underlying the calculation of the cumula-
tive effect of this change is a comparison of the undis-
counted pre-tax cash flows of each field’s then existing
proved reserves to its net book value at each quarter-
end during the life of the asset. This subjects the ceiling
test valuation to the lowest quarter-end price experi-
enced over the asset's life. Prior to this change, the
Company compared its worldwide undiscounted stand-
ardized measure of future net cash flows from estimated
production of proved oil and gas reserves before income
taxes to its net proved property, plant and equipment. As
a result of this change, the Company recognized a non-
cash cumulative effect charge of $948 million ($1,355
million pre-tax) to 1994 results. Excluding the cumulative
charge, the Company’s net loss for 1994 was $77 million
($.68 per share before extraordinary item and $.80 per
share after extraordinary item). On a pro forma basis, the
Company’s reported net earnings for 1993 and 1992
would have been a net loss of $699 million ($7.18 per
share before extraordinary item and $7.25 per share
after extraordinary item) and a net loss of $145 million
($1.78 per share) if this accounting change had been
enacted prior to 1992.

Maintenance Turnaround Costs

TERRA INDUSTRIES INC. (DEC)

Consolidated Statements of Income
(in thousands,
except per-share amounts) 1994 1993 1992

Income before extraordinary
items and cumulative effect of

accounting changes $56,245 $22,845 $ 8,764
Extraordinary loss on early

retirement of debt (3,060) - -
Cumulative effect of

accounting changes 3,376 — 22,265
Net income $56,561 $22,845 $31,029

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

3 (In Part): Accounting Changes

Coincident with the 1994 acquisition of AMCI (see Note 2
- Acquisitions), the Corporation changed its method of
accounting for major maintenance turnarounds at manu-
facturing facilities and recorded a $4.2 million credit, net
of income taxes of $2.7 million, as the cumulative effect
at January 1, 1994 of the change in accounting principle.
Excluding the cumulative effect, this change increased
net income for 1994 by approximately $1.0 million or
$0.01 per share. Under the new accounting principle the
Corporation defers the cost of turnarounds when in-
curred and charges the costs to production ratably over
the period until the next scheduled turnaround. Pre-
viously, estimated costs of turnarounds were charged to
product costs over the period preceding each scheduled
major maintenance, generally two years. The change
was made to charge turnaround costs to production over
the period most clearly benefited by the turnaround.

In 1994, the Corporation adopted Statement of Finan-
cial Accounting Standard (SFAS) 112, “Employers’ Ac-
counting for Postemployment Benefits.” This change
required the Corporation to recognize future liabilities of
$0.8 million, net of income taxes of $0.5 million, for bene-
fits to disabled employees. In 1992, the Corporation
adopted SFAS 106, “Employers’ Accounting for Postre-
tirement Benefits Other than Pensions.” in connection
with the adoption of SFAS 106, the Corporation elected
to recognize immediately the prior service cost of provid-
ing post-retirement medical benefits during the active
service of the employee. This resulted in a one-time
charge of $5.7 million, net of income taxes of $3.5 mil-
lion. Net income from continuing operations for 1992 was
reduced $0.7 million from that which would have been
reported under the Corporation’s previous accounting
method. The pro forma effect of the change on prior
years is not determinable. Prior to the changes in ac-
counting for SFAS 106 and 112, the Corporation recog-
nized expense in the period the benefits were paid.
These benefit costs were not significant in prior years.
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Asset Impairment

UNOCAL CORPORATION (DEC)

Consolidated Statement Of Earnings

Dollars in millions
except per share amounts 1994 1993 1992
Earnings before income taxes and

cumulative effect of

accounting changes $294 $611 $349
Income taxes , 170 268 153
Earnings before cumulative effect

of accounting changes 124 343 196
Cumulative effect of ‘

accounting changes (277) (130) 24

Net Earnings (loss) $(153) $213 $220

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2 (In Part): Accounting Changes

Effective January 1, 1994, the company changed its ac-
counting policy for recognizing the reduction in value of
its producing oil and gas properties. Under the new pol-
icy, the company evaluates properties for impairment on
a field-by-field basis instead of the country-by-country
basis previously used. In the opinion of management,
the use of a lower level of aggregation for applying the
impairment test to producing oil and gas properties is
preferable. The cumulative effect of the accounting
change resulted in a charge to earnings of $447 million
pretax ($277 million after tax or $1.14 per common
share) in the first quarter. The charge reflected the re-
duction in value of certain oil and gas properties in the
U.S. from which the estimated undiscounted future cash
flows are less than the current net book values of the
properties. As a result of the property write-downs, the
company’s depreciation and depletion expense in 1994
was reduced by approximately $61 million ($38 million
after tax). On a pro forma basis, net earnings for 1993
and 1992 would have increased by $31 million and $27
million, respectively, as a result of the accounting
change. Pro forma net earnings would have been $244
million (86 cents per common share) in 1993 and $247
million (97 cents per common share) in 1992.

Equity Method Adopted
WORTHINGTON INDUSTRIES, INC. (MAY)

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’
Equity

Dollars in thousands,
except per share 1994 1993 1992

Retained Earnings
Balance at beginning of year $356,567 $320,078 $288,194
Restatement—Note J — - 4,056
Balance at beginning of
year—restated
Net earnings
Cash dividends,
(per share: $.367 in 1994;
$.327 in 1993; $.305 in 1992)
Purchase and retirement of
common shares,
(1,436 in 1994; 181,200
in 1993; 1,791 in 1992) (25)  (2,130) (18)

Balance at May 31 $408,234 $356,567 $320,078

356,567
84,853

320,078
67,948

292,250
54,973

(33,161) (29,329) (27,127)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

Note J—Investment in Unconsolidated Affiliates
The Company’s investments in affiliated companies
which are not majority owned or controlled are ac-
counted for using the equity method. Investments carried
at equity and the percentage interest owned consist of
Worthington Specialty Processing (50%), London Indus-
tries, Inc. (60%), Worthington Armstrong Venture (50%),
TWB Company (50%) and Rouge Steel Company (28%).
During 1994, the Company increased its voting owner-
ship in Rouge, an integrated steel mill located in Detroit,
Michigan. Accordingly, the Company changed its method
of carrying the investment from cost to equity as required
by generally accepted accounting principles. The finan-
cial statements of prior years have been restated back to
fiscal 1990, the year of the original investment in Rouge.
The effect of the restatement was to increase 1993 net
income by $1,745,000 or $.02 per share and to decrease
1992 net income by $562,000 or $.01 per share. In-
cluded in the 1992 restatement was equity in Rouge’s
cumulative effect of adopting FASB Statements 106 and
109, which decreased net income by $3,058,000 or $.03
per share. Certain reclassifications were made to prior
years’ amounts to conform with the 1994 presentation.
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The Company’s equity interest in Rouge for the re-
statement periods is shown at 25%. After Rouge’s initial
public offering (IPO), completed in April 1994, the Com-
pany’s equity interest is 28%. Rouge sold 5,601,800
shares in the IPO for $123,000,000. The Company re-
corded its increased equity in Rouge from the IPO
($10,046,000), which is net of deferred income taxes
($5,405,000), as additional paid-in capital. The market
value of the Company’s investment in Rouge at May 31,
1994, was approximately $156 million.

At May 31, 1994, the Company’s share of the underly-
ing net assets of Rouge exceeded the investment by
$10,667,000. The excess is being amortized into income
by increasing equity in net income of unconsolidated af-
filiates using the straight-line method over 14 years.

Financial information for affiliated companies ac-
counted for by the equity method is as follows:

In thousands 1994 1993 1992
Current assets $ 514,407$ 363,745
Noncurrent assets 153,937 123,550
Current liabilities 267,372 168,741
Noncurrent liabilities 166,862 256,923
Minority interest 21,199 9,857
Net sales 1,189,470 1,070,560 $984,572
Gross margin 106,309 58,700 48,491
Income before

accounting changes 64,152 15,887 17,783

Net income $ 64152 8% 15887 $(1,470)

The Company’s share of undistributed earnings of un-
consolidated affiliates included in consolidated retained
earnings was $24,571,000 at May 31, 1994.

Future Accounting Changes
DRESSER INDUSTRIES, INC. (OCT)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note N (In Part): Postretirement Benefits

Postemployment Benefits

In November 1992, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Stand-
ards No. 112, Employers’ Accounting for Postemploy-
ment Benefits (SFAS 112), which requires that accrual
accounting be used for the cost of benefits provided to
former or inactive employees who have not yet retired.
Such benefits include salary continuation, disability, sev-
erance and health care. Under SFAS 112, the cost of
benefits must be accrued either over the employee’s
service period or at the date of an event that gives rise to
the benefits. The Company currently accrues the cost of
some benefits covered by SFAS 112 but not all.

The Company will adopt SFAS 112 in the first quarter
of 1995, and will incur a charge to earnings of approxi-
mately $25 million ($16 million, net of tax or $.09 per
share) for the cumulative effect of the accounting
change.

FMC CORPORATION (DEC)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (In Part): Principal Accounting Policies

Accounting standards not adopted. The Accounting
Standards Executive Committee of the AICPA adopted
Statement of Position 94-6 on December 30, 1994. This
SOP, Disclosure of Certain Significant Risks and Uncer-
tainties and Financial Flexibility, is effective for fiscal
years ending after December 15, 1995. The disclosures
required by the SOP focus primarily on the nature of an
entity’s operations, the use of estimates in preparation of
financial statements and on risks and uncertainties that
could significantly affect the amounts reported in the fi-
nancial statements. FMC plans to adopt the statement
for the annual report to shareholders for 1995 but it is not
possible, at this time, to determine what additional
disclosures may be necessary with respect to reasonably
possible risks and uncertainties that could significantly
affect the amounts reported in the 1995 financial
statements.

SARA LEE CORPORATION (JUN)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (In Part)

Advertising

During 1994, the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants issued Statement of Position 93-7, “Report-
ing on Advertising Costs,” which will be effective for the
corporation’s fiscal 1995 statements. The statement pri-
marily requires that the cost of advertising be expensed
no later than the first time the advertising takes place.
The impact of adopting this statement is not expected to
have a matérial impact upon the corporation’s results of
operations or financial position.

SCOPE INDUSTRIES (JUN)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (In Part): Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies

Marketable Securities:

The non-current portfolio of marketable securities is
stated at the lower of aggregate cost or market at the
balance sheet date and consists of common stocks,
bonds and other investments. Interest income is accrued
as earned.

Realized gains or losses are determined on the spe-
cific identification method and are reflected in income.
Net unrealized losses on non-current marketable securi-
ties are recorded directly in a separate shareowners’ eg-
uity account except those unrealized losses that are
deemed to be other than temporary, which are reflected
in income.
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For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1994, the Com-
pany will be subject to the provisions of Statement of Fi-
nancial Accounting Standards No. 115 (SFAS 115),
Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity
Securities. SFAS 115 changes the accounting treatment
afforded the Company’s fixed maturity investments and
equity investments that have readily determinable fair
values. If SFAS 115 had been adopted as of June 30,
1994, the Company’s marketable securities and share-
owners’ equity would have been increased by approxi-
mately $5,730,000 and the statement of operations
would not have been affected.

TALLEY INDUSTRIES, INC.(DEC)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In October 1994 the Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Stand-
ards No. 119 “Disclosure About Derivative Financial In-
struments and Fair Value of Financial Instruments” effec-
tive for the Company at December 31, 1994. The
Company does not presently have nor has it had any de-
rivative type instruments since mid-1993 when a single
interest rate swap agreement was terminated, which
transaction is fully disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board has issued
a Proposed Statement of Financial Accounting Stand-
ards titled “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived
Assets” (the “Proposed Statement”) which, if adopted in
its present form, could have a material impact on the re-
sults of operations and financial position of the Company
in the year of adoption. The application of this Proposed
Statement, which will be effective for fiscal years begin-
ning after June 15, 1995, would require the Company to
carry real estate projects no longer under development,
at the lower of cost or fair value less cost to sell. If the
sum of the expected future net cash flow (undiscounted
and without interest charges) is less than the carrying
amount of undeveloped projects, an impairment loss
would be recognized. The Company, consistent with ex-
isting generally accepted accounting principles, currently
states the majority of its land and land under develop-
ment at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The Fi-
nancial Accounting Standards Board has not vyet
published the final statement which would allow quantifi-
cation of the effect on the Company.

Other pronouncements issued by the Financial Ac-
counting Standards Board with future effective dates are
either not applicable or not material to the consolidated
financial statements of the Company.

WEYERHAEUSER COMPANY (DEC)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (In Part): Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies

Prospective Accounting Changes

In May 1993, the FASB issued SFAS No. 114, “Account-
ing by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan,” which re-
quires creditors to measure impairment based on the
present value of expected future cash flows discounted
at the loan’s effective interest rate.

In October 1994, the FASB issued SFAS No. 118, “Ac-
counting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan—Income
Recognition and Disclosures,” which amended SFAS No.
114 to allow creditors to use existing methods for recog-
nizing interest on impaired loans and also requires credi-
tors to disclose certain information about how interest
income was recognized on impaired loans.

Both of these pronouncements become effective for fi-
nancial statements for fiscal years beginning after De-
cember 15, 1994. The company believes that the future
adoption of these pronouncements will not have a signifi-
cant impact on results of operations or financial position.

CONSOLIDATION POLICIES

Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51 states in part:

1. The purpose of consolidated statements is to pre-
sent, primarily for the benefit of the shareholders
and creditors of the parent company, the results of
operations and the financial position of a parent
company and its subsidiaries essentially as if the
group were a single company with one or more
branches or divisions. There is a presumption that
consolidated statements are more meaningful than
separate statements and that they are usually nec-
essary for a fair presentation when one of the com-
panies in the group directly or indirectly has a
controlling financial interest in the other companies.

5. Consolidated statements should disclose the
consolidation policy which is being followed. In most
cases,<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>